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Bank Profile
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OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited (Macau) is a wholly owned-subsidiary
of OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited (Hong Kong). Previously known as
Banco Weng Hang, S.A., OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited (Macau) was
established in 1941 and has about 500 employees.

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited (Hong Kong), the former Wing Hang
Bank, Limited became a wholly-owned subsidiary of OCBC Bank on 15
October 2014. OCBC Bank is the second largest financial services group
in Southeast Asia by assets with an Aa1 rating from Moody's. Recognised
for its financial strength and stability, OCBC Bank has been ranked
Asean’s strongest bank and among the world’s five strongest banks by
Bloomberg Markets for five consecutive years since the ranking’s inception
in 2011. OCBC Bank is the longest established Singapore bank with an
international presence of over 620 branches and representative offices
in 18 countries and regions. OCBC Bank's market-leading subsidiaries
include Great Eastern Holdings, the oldest and most established life
insurance group in Singapore and Malaysia; Lion Global Investors, one of
the largest private sector asset management companies in Southeast Asia;
and Bank of Singapore, which operates on a unique open-architecture
product platform to source for the best-in-class products to meet its
clients’ goals.

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited (Hong Kong) together with its subsidiaries
and affiliated companies, offers a comprehensive range of commercial
banking products and services and other financial services such as
consumer financing, share brokerage and insurance, among others. It has
a network of 90 branches and offices in Hong Kong, Macau and China,
including the 13 branches operated by OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited
(Macau).

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited (Macau), as part of the OCBC group of
companies, offers customers an augmented banking network, enhanced
market access and an expanded range of products and services to meet
their personal and business financial needs.
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2015 Results in Brief

LABPI#ETF Tl 3R (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas)
#hn, Crd)
Increase/
(Decrease)
2EEH FOR THE YEAR 2015 2014 %
R A58 18 5 A Profit after taxation 377,082 332,500 13.4%
% & Dividends - 120,000 -100.0%
REKTHE AT YEAR END 2015 2014 %
[ R fe e 4B 5B Total equity 3,409,479 3,077,641 10.8%
EIFR Total deposits 28,783,824 30,286,129 -5.0%
Z2EEX Advances to customers 22,265,189 21,950,541 1.4%
BEE Total assets 32,805,878 35,587,868 -7.8%
[z RATIO % %
A 7R B b 2R Cost to income ratio 43.4 443
F15 & FE Rl ) R Return on average assets 1.1 1.0
FHARRE & B E Return on average shareholders’ funds 11.6 11.8
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Five Year Financial Summary

F TR PI MOP thousand 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
RERE Shareholders’ fund 1,849,311 2,122,248 2,572,192 3,077,641 3,409,479
@R Total deposits 19,157,372 23,267,179 26,854,154 30,286,129 28,783,824
BEER Advances to customers 13,675,685 16,269,604 19,501,200 21,950,541 22,265,189
BEE Total assets 21,803,350 25,994,279 31,471,040 35,587,868 32,805,878
EERA Operating income 492,079 526,039 638,308 732,503 777,009
EEXH Operating expenses (223,021) (241,789) (285,023) (324,290) (336,875)
B 758 18 5 ) Profit after taxation 246,873 271,648 356,296 332,500 377,082
A% 5 Dividends (42,000) (84,000) (48,000) (120,000) -
[ Ratio 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

BFH R Loan to deposit ratio 71.4 69.9 72.6 72.5 77.4
EARTE B & Capital adequacy ratio * 13.0 12.1 12.8 12.5 13.7

PR BT A Lt & Cost to income ratio 453 46.0 447 443 43.4
SRl EEES Return on average assets 1.2 1.1 1.2 1.0 1.1

FHRREESBIIRE  Return on average

shareholders’ funds 14.3 13.7 15.2 11.8 11.6

* RRFEMERRZERMAE
Calculated in accordance with the requirements set out by the Autoridade Monetaria de Macau.

4 EB/EXTHRITRHOERAT - 2015FFH



R PHRRESEHE

Net Profit / Return on Average Shareholders’ Fund
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Net Profit Return on Average Shareholders’ Fund
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Bank Information
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Shareholders
OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited
Incorporated in Hong Kong

Board of Directors
Chairman
Mr NA Wu Beng

Directors

Ms KNG Hwee Tin

Mr Frank John WANG

Mr LEE Tak Lim

Mr YUEN Sui Chi Stanley

Mr WONG Chun Kau Stephen
Mr CHAN Han Wo

Mr FUNG Yuk Sing Michael

Supervisory Council
Ms LO Wai Ching Maggie

Mr TSE Hau Yin Aloysius

Mr LEUNG Chiu Wah

General Meeting Committee
Mr LEE Tak Lim

Mr Frank John WANG

Mr YUEN Sui Chi Stanley
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Chairman’s Statement
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R - R2015FER 2 TRERGHEERLL
EMEFEFE0.12% BN EK T o

EFREE
EFR

Mr. NA Wu Beng

Chairman

Macau’s economy experienced a very challenging period in 2015 as
the gaming revenue continued its downward trend for 19 consecutive
months. Real GDP in Macau contracted by 20.3 percent. Despite the
difficult economic environment, the Bank achieved satisfactory results
across all business divisions. The Bank recorded a loan growth of 1 percent
in light of the general low loan demand. By tailoring loan packages to
our target customers, the Bank recorded satisfactory growth in residential
mortgages despite a sharp decline in property transactions. As the Bank
continued to deepen our market position in car and consumer finance
products, this business recorded a 15 percent growth. The Bank’s net
interest margin improved as a result of effective asset and liability
management strategy. The loan-to-deposit ratio was maintained at a
healthy level of 77 percent. With a prudent underwriting policy, the Bank’s
asset quality remains sound. As at year-end of 2015, the ratio of impaired
loans to total loans was at a low level of 0.12 percent.

Banco OCBC Weng Hang, S.A. « Annual Report 2015 7
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Chairman’s Statement
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The Bank also recorded satisfactory growth in major fee income
areas, including credit card, stock brokerage, insurance and wealth
management. The Bank added several functionalities to its online stock
trading platform in the first quarter of 2015 to meet the needs of our
customers. Wealth management achieved satisfactory results as the Bank
capitalized on the expanded product range and service expertise of the
OCBC Group in providing top-notch wealth management products to our
customers.

Thanks to the strong support and trust from our customers, the Bank's
operating profit increased 12.4 percent to a record MOP433 million as
compared to MOP385 million in 2014. Shareholders’ funds amounted
to MOP3,409 million, an increase of 10.8 percent as compared to 2014,
and return on average shareholders’ funds was 11.6 percent. The capital
adequacy ratio of the Bank at the end of 2015 was maintained at a healthy
ratio of 13.7 percent.

Looking ahead, the operating environment will be challenging. While we
are closely monitoring our loan portfolio during the economic downturn,
our prudent approach to extend credit means that our existing portfolio
remains fundamentally strong. We remain vigilant to emerging risks from
the economic headwinds. With the continued support from our customers
and dedication of our colleagues, and a strong parent backing from the
OCBC Group we are confident of maintaining a competitive franchise in
the market.

Finally, | would like to thank our customers for their confidence and
unwavering support. | also thank our colleagues for upholding a
high standard of customer service and for delivering a good financial
performance in 2015.

NA Wu Beng
Chairman

15 March 2016
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Report of the Supervisory Council

MNETZBERBES  SXEBKRIEZEETERXJTY  The balance sheet and income statement of the Bank (the “financial
BB ASRIBITAGI MR SIBFZEENEE  statements”) are prepared in accordance with Macau banking laws and
BEtMESEZTE - (kAEER - %53  audited by KPMG. In the opinion of the Supervisory Council, the financial
FRRUABRAIRITA2015F12A31H 2 EE R statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Bank

NETBHRARBEZBLIEZZFHET - as at 31 December 2015, and of the profit for the year then ended.
EEerE President of Supervisory Council

EEE EE LO Wai Ching Maggie

201643 H15H 15 March 2016
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Corporate Governance Report
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Bank is a wholly-owned subsidiary of OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited,
Hong Kong (“OWH"), which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited (“OCBC"). OWH has
complied with Supervisory Policy Manual on Corporate Governance of
Locally Incorporated Authorized Institutions issued by the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority. The Bank has also applied the internal control
objectives, principles and components as set out in “The Internal Control
Guidelines for the Authorised Credit Institutions” issued by the Monetary
Authority of Macau throughout the year ended 31 December 2015.

Board of Directors

Throughout the year, the Board maintained a stable composition that
provided strong and consistent leadership conducive to making and
implementing decisions effectively and appropriately. Each Director
possesses skills and experiences appropriate to the business of the Bank.
The Board also includes personnel with the appropriate accounting and
other expertise necessary for the smooth running of the Bank. During
the year, all directors of the Bank received regular briefings on economic
updates, the Bank’s business, operations, risk management and corporate
governance matters as well as new rules and regulations and changes to
rules and regulations applicable to the Bank.

Members of the Board are as follows:

Mr NA Wu Beng (Non-Executive Chairman)

Mr LEE Tak Lim (Director & General Manager)

Mr CHAN Han Wo Herbert (Director & Deputy General Manager)
Ms KNG Hwee Tin (Non-Executive Director)

Mr Frank John WANG (Non-Executive Director)

Mr WONG Chun Kau Stephen (Non-Executive Director)

Mr YUEN Sui Chi Stanley (Non-Executive Director)

Mr FUNG Yuk Sing Michael (Non-Executive Director)

The following directors are senior executives of OWH:

Mr NA Wu Beng, Chief Executive, Mr Frank John WANG, Deputy Chief
Executive, Mr FUNG Yuk Sing Michael, Group Executive, Mr WONG Chun
Kau Stephen, Senior Deputy General Manager and Mr YUEN Sui Chi
Stanley, Chief Financial Officer.

All Directors have no relationship with each other.

During the year, eight board meetings were held. The 2015 Annual
General Meeting will be held on 30 March 2016.
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Supervisory Council

During the year ended 31 December 2015, there was no change in the
composition of the Supervisory Council. The Supervisory Council satisfies
the requirement stipulated in the Macau Commercial Code that one of its
members is a Registered Auditor in Macau.

The Supervisory Council of the Bank has clear terms of reference which are
regularly reviewed (the latest version was approved by the Shareholders’
Annual General Meeting on 19 March, 2013). Its principal functions are
to independently review and monitor the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process, internal control and risk management system of
the Bank; oversee the audit process; and perform all other duties and
obligations mentioned in the law and in the articles of association of the
Bank. The Supervisory Council reviews the audit coverage and approves
the internal audit plan, reviews the work, findings and recommendations
of the internal auditors. The Supervisory Council also discusses issues
raised by the external auditors and the regulators, and ensures that
recommendations are properly implemented.

Members of the Supervisory Council are as follows:

Ms LO Wai Ching Maggie (President)
Mr TSE Hau Yin Aloysius (Supervisor)
Mr LEUNG Chiu Wah Stephen (Supervisor)

Ms LO Wai Ching Maggie is the Chief Internal Auditor, and Mr LEUNG
Chiu Wah Stephen is Chief Operating Officer of OWH. Mr TSE Hau Yin
Aloysius is a Registered Auditor in Macau, a fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and a former president and
member of the Audit Committee of the HKICPA.

Mr TSE Hau Yin Aloysius is an Independent Non-Executive and Chairman
of the Risk Management Committee and Audit Committee of OWH.

Four meetings were held in 2015.

Banco OCBC Weng Hang, S.A. « Annual Report 2015 11
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Corporate Strategy and Business Model

The Bank is a leading financial service provider in Macau. We aim to be
the preferred choice of our customers for financial services and to increase
shareholders’ value by maintaining a consistent growth in return on
equity.

To be successful, we need to be focused and responsive as business
environments are challenging and ever changing. The Bank’s strategic
objective is to continue to strengthen both business and operational
aspects of the Bank to ensure satisfactory returns to shareholders and to
further improve the competitiveness of the Bank.

Remuneration Committee

The Bank follows the principle of the remuneration policy of OWH. The
Board has mandated a committee comprising Mr NA Wu Beng, Mr Frank
John WANG, and Ms KNG Hwee Tin to determine the Bank’s remuneration
policy and structure for all Executive Directors and senior management of
the Bank, by reference to corporate goals and objectives as determined
by the Board from time to time. In determining the remuneration policy,
the Committee takes into account the Bank’s business objectives, human
resources strategy, short-term and long-term performance, business and
economic conditions, and market practices in order to retain staff with
relevant expertise for the Bank’s long-term success.

The mandate also empowers the Committee to appoint members of senior
management and recommend to the Shareholders the appointment of
Directors.

Delegation by the Board

The Board has established the following committees to oversee the day-
to-day operations of the Bank. All committees have specific terms of
reference in order to ensure that they discharge their functions properly
and to report back to the Board, where appropriate, their decisions and
recommendations. Information on these committees is set out below:

Management Committee

The Management Committee meets regularly to review and approve
all major matters relating to the strategy and planning, operations,
management and performance of the Bank. It is granted powers and
authorities necessary for conducting and managing the Bank’s normal
banking and related activities.
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Members of the Management Committee are as follows:

—  Group Executive of OWH;

—  General Manager;

—  Deputy General Manager,

— Head of Financial & Risk Management Division;
—  Head of Consumer Credit & Finance Division;
— Head of Retail Banking Division;

— Head of Corporate Banking Division;

— Head of Operations Division; and

—  Head of Self-Service Banking Division.

Credit Committee

The Credit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board to formulate,
approve and implement loan policies, guidelines and credit practices of
the Bank. It is also responsible for the implementation and maintenance
of the Bank’s credit risk management framework. It also participates in
evaluating large credit applications and making credit decisions.

Members of the Credit Committee are as follows:

—  General Manager;

—  Deputy General Manager,

— Head of Financial & Risk Management Division;

—  Head of Consumer Credit & Finance Division;

- Head of Corporate Banking Division; and

- Head of Credit and Risk Management Department.

Asset and Liability Management Committee

The Asset and Liability Management Committee is responsible for
the implementation and maintenance of the overall risk management
framework relating to balance sheet structure, market risk, trading,
funding and liquidity risk management of the Bank. It recommends policy
and guidelines to the Board for approval.

Members of the Asset and Liability Management Committee are as
follows:

—  General Manager;

—  Deputy General Manager;

— Head of Financial & Risk Management Division;
— Head of Treasury Department; and

— Head of Financial Management Department.

Banco OCBC Weng Hang, S.A. « Annual Report 2015 13
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Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee provides a structured, cohesive and
forward-looking mechanism to identify, measure, monitor and control the
various type of risks across the entire spectrum of the Bank’s activities.
While each of these risks is managed by the division/department with
specialized knowledge and expertise in that area, the Risk Management
Committee is assigned to oversee the overall assessment and management
of these risks. The Risk Management Committee aims to ensure that each
level of risks is within the parameters set by the Board and that the risk
management process meets the standards required by the AMCM.

Members of the Risk Management Committee are as follows:

—  General Manager;

—  Deputy General Manager;

— Head of Financial & Risk Management Division;

— Head of Operations Division;

— Head of Self-Service Banking Division;

— Head of Credit and Risk Management Department;
— Head of Legal and Compliance Department;

— Head of Financial Management Department; and
— Head of Information Technology Department;

Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Committee
The Anti-Money Laundering (“AML") and Counter-Terrorist Financing
(“CFT") Committee is formed to oversee the functioning and effectiveness
of AML/CFT control measures so that all AML/CFT cases or issues are
properly monitored and addressed in a timely manner. It meets regularly
to discuss and approve actions and initiatives to mitigate risks arising from
AML/CFT matters and ensures proper control measures are in place to
meet the AML/CFT statutory and regulatory requirements.

Members of the Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing
Committee are as follows:

—  General Manager;

—  Deputy General Manager;

— Head of Financial & Risk Management Division;
— Head of Consumer Credit & Finance Division;

— Head of Retail Banking Division;

— Head of Corporate Banking Division;

—  Head of Operations Division;

— Head of Branch Operation & Planning Department;
— Head of Human Resources Department;

— Head of Central Control Department;

— Head of Legal and Compliance Department; and
— Head of Internal Audit Department.
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Internal Controls
The Directors are responsible for internal controls of the Bank and for
reviewing its effectiveness.

Procedures are designed to safeguard assets against unauthorized use or
disposition; maintain proper accounting records; and ensure the reliability
of financial information used within the business or for publication.
Procedures have also been designed to ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules and regulations.

Systems and procedures are in place to identify, control and report on
major risks the Bank faces. Risk management policies and major risk
control limits are approved by the Board.

Business and functional units are responsible for the assessment of
risks arising under their areas of responsibility and the management
of such risks in accordance with the Bank’s risk management policies
and procedures. The relevant risk management reports are submitted
to the Management Committee, Credit Committee, Asset and Liability
Management Committee, Risk Management Committee and the Board for
monitoring the respective risks.

More detailed discussions on the policies and procedures for management
of major risks the Bank faces, including credit, market, liquidity and
operational risks as well as capital management, are included in note 24 to
the financial statements.

Internal audit plays an important role in the Bank’s internal control
framework. It monitors the effectiveness of internal control procedures
and compliance with policies and standards across all business and
operational units. Senior management is required to provide the internal
audit function with written confirmation that it has acted fully on all
recommendations made by external auditors and regulatory authorities.
The internal audit function also advises senior management on operational
efficiency and other risk management issues. The work of the internal
audit function focuses on areas of greatest risk to the Bank as determined
by risk assessment. The Chief Internal Auditor reports to the General
Manager and President of the Supervisory Council. Audit reports are
submitted to the Board and Audit Committee of OWH for review.

Macau, 15 March 2016
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As a well-established financial institution with a long history in Macau, we
are reliable and trustworthy to our community. We have a responsibility to
contribute to the development of our community and employees. Hence,
corporate social responsibility (“CSR") is a core aspect of our business and
we have a strong sense of commitment in fulfilling this responsibility and
ensuring that it is part of our everyday operation.

It is in our interest to act upon our goals of CSR. We realize that the
more harmonious the place in which we run our business, the greater the
chance of success. Therefore, CSR has always been an integral part of
the Bank’s corporate strategy. It is our belief that a responsible business
creates a win-win situation for the Bank, its shareholders, customers,
employees, business partners, and the society at large.

At OCBC Wing Hang Limited (Macau), corporate social responsibility
represents our commitment to promote business activities that bring
economic, social and environmental benefits to the society. We attain
the targets by actively fulfilling our governance, environmental and
community responsibilities.

ERAKFRITZEFEHESER

CSR in OCBC

Wing Hang Limited (Macau)

(o meEE O\ [ mEEE N [ weEs )
Governance Responsibility Environmental Responsibility Community Responsibility
- PEMBEIER — BERAEES) — FEHE
CSR Management Green Office Campaign Equal Opportunity
— FERER — FEXFRRED — BIEHERA
Risk Management Continual Support of Employee Enrichment
— BB Environmental Activities — Mg A= LIRS
Business Ethics — PR RHERSIFRR Community Services
Eco-Friendly Customers

N N

and Suppliers

/ /
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Governance Responsibility
Good governance enables us to manage risk and earn the trust of
customers and stakeholders.

CSR Management

To plan and manage our CSR activities in a systematic and coherent
manner, we have a CSR Committee to develop strategies, policies and
guidelines on CSR. The Committee also approves, supervises and monitors
the implementation of all CSR initiatives. Our monitoring and review
system on the CSR framework is on-going so that we continuously
improve our CSR strategies.

A CSR Working Team and various support teams working under the
direction of the CSR Committee are responsible for the promotion,
support and organization of CSR activities.

In an ever-changing business environment, the CSR Committee monitors
the Bank’s corporate governance practices to ensure all our activities
are conducted with professionalism, high ethical standards, integrity
and honesty. Compliance, which governs our daily operations, is every
colleague’s responsibility. We organize on-going compliance training to
uphold the Bank’s standard of business practices and services.

Risk Management

Corporate governance in the Bank includes a risk management framework
to manage economic and social risk, to ensure business continuity and to
serve the interests of our stakeholders.

Business Ethics

We strongly believe that providing quality services with high ethical
standards and practices to customers is a key element to maintain good
relationship with our customers. This is essential to sustain growth in our
business, and is definitely in the interest of our shareholders.

BITEEMEEE - ERRTEERBE A2 — 555
Fulfilling CSR has always been an integral part of the Bank’s corporate strategy

Banco OCBC Weng Hang, S.A. « Annual Report 2015 17



R ERERS

Corporate Social Responsibility Report

RBERME

BITREREELE - TEUBERRITERRME
REIR - M iRERE - RN TEHRMEL—
EEDBRZIRR  RERMZEEEER -

BERAEED

ER—FHRRAREZEE  NRITREEEY
—fEsR B2 RK o [EIRBEE - WEEARRK
EAIRARITEENAEEH 2 EE - BH#
Z—HNE  HBERE TRERE -

FEXFRRED
RFTZFRBEIFTHRRLE - BRI
RARES RN Z[WR—/ERETE] R
FIBUFER it 2 DRPIEREEIR 1R 8 M BRI IRIR
RERBBATHEELRRALSE °

BTHREERMEZEREE L - INARMRK
FERREOBH - RITR2015F6 A8 [ ER
KR W5 | ERRT —ERA [KREH—
REY  ZETREMARRER ° A178E THK
B HBNITRARA KA A # RO 3HUR ER
RBR  BEREREA -

B2 RREENESTE R LRESRR
BREZERY  RBRENRSETIETERE
L RIRER

EBEFRHEEBAXFRR
ROITEHEDEFMNAEFRITRG - BREEF

RS WRADHKRERE - MRMaEnEE
BEPRHEFIFEDNE R EEEPRERRRE
NMIREURRIE N ©

TR RER P INEE)

We organized regular recreational and outdoor activities

18 E/XFRITVROBABRDT « 20155 5K

Environmental Responsibility

Being environmentally responsible not only protects the environment
when we use our natural resources more efficiently, it also helps us build
a less polluting environment and improve our quality of life.

Green Office Campaign

As a socially responsible corporation, we actively work towards a green
future. "Reduce, Reuse and Recycle” is the theme of the Bank’s Green
Office Campaign. With a firm belief that every bit of effort helps, all staff
are encouraged to protect the environment.

Continual Support of Environmental Activities

We showed our support to various environmental protection activities,
like the "Earth Hour” organized by WWF, the “Energy Conservation
Week"” organized by the Macau SAR Government and assist the
Macau Environmental Protection Bureau to send out the message of
environmental protection via our network.

In order to promote the concept of environment protection in our daily
lives and enhance the understanding among the general public, we have
jointly organized a “Carry a New Bag” campaign with “Green Future”
and “Green Market” in June 2015 for encouraging more usage of
environmental friendly products. Our Volunteer Service Team helped to
distribute recycling plastic bags to stall owners in 7 wet markets in Macau
to convey the message of environmental protection.

Our Environmental Protection Committee continuously reviews and
promotes various activities to educate and enhance the awareness of
environmental lifestyle of our employees.

Eco-Friendly Customers and Suppliers

The Bank constantly educated our customers to make use of our electronic
banking services, including e-statement to reduce paper usage. Some
of our corporate customers and major suppliers have also installed
environment protection facilities and adopted environmental friendly
practices in their daily operation.
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We organized regular recreational activities for our staff

Community Responsibility

We aspire to be the employer of choice for desired talents as our strong
performance is driven by employees with passion and commitment. We
also believe our business can only succeed if the society is prospering.
Hence, it is our responsibility to further the development of our employees
and support the community.

Equal Opportunity

The bank ensures equal opportunity in employment. We encourage
breaking unnecessary barriers and building a harmonious working
environment for all staff. The Bank will continue to support equal
opportunity in our employment practice.

Employee Enrichment

Our staff is our greatest asset. Nurturing out staff and helping them to
relieve their stress can increase their efficiency and performance at work.
We realize that consistent and excellent staff performance, as well as
strong commitment are important to the Bank’s success.

We treasure our employees by providing a safe and quality-working
environment as well as suitable and competitive remuneration to meet
their needs.

Training and Further Studies

We always focus on nurturing our employees to be all-round performers.
Programs for Management Trainees and Super Service are held to
develop talents and enable the Bank to stay competitive in a dynamic
business environment. Education allowances are offered to employees to
encourage them to further equip themselves to best serve the Bank and
the customers.

Banco OCBC Weng Hang, S.A. « Annual Report 2015 19
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Work-life Balance

In 2015, the Bank continued to launch Staff Caring Weeks Program with
the theme of “Balance well to Reach High” to cultivate a strong sense of
social responsibility and raise the importance of health, family, leisure and
life-long learning amongst our workforce.

In order to help employees relieve their stress and maintain good
relationships with their families, various recreational and outdoor activities
were organized during the year for our staff and their families.

Community Services

We believe that by devoting resources and efforts in community services,
the Bank can contribute to the building of a harmonious society. The
Bank’s Volunteer Service Team actively participates in social activities and
contributes our efforts to the well being of the needy.

Donations and Sponsorships

The young generation is the pillars of our future, so we set up the
“Elite Student Award” Scheme starting from 2005 to recognize the
achievements of primary and secondary students in different areas. Up till
now, over 1,000 students had been awarded.

In the past year, we have donated to various charity organizations,
including Caritas Macau, Tong Sin Tong, Orbis and Fu Hong Society.

FITHEIBEHLEZIEEE R RS
Our Volunteer Service Team actively participated in different charity and community services
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Volunteer Services

In 2015, 180 members of our Volunteer Service Team devoted 1,418
community service hours for a number of worthy causes. The Bank is an
active partner of ORBIS and Caritas in Macau to support their mission of
helping the poor and needy in the society. Aside from issuing the ORBIS
and Caritas Charity Credit Cards and donates 0.3% of spending on each
transaction to ORBIS and Caritas Macau, the Bank also sponsors and
supports the charity services of these two organizations. During the year,
we were one of the corporate ambassadors of ORBIS’s “Action for Sight”
in support of their sight-saving projects worldwide. Our Volunteer Service
Team also vigorously supported the “Short-term Food Assistance Service”
of Caritas Macau.

Future

We are proud of our strong commitments in all CSR aspects. CSR practices
in our Bank are dynamic and on-going. Looking ahead, we will continue
to identify opportunities to enhance our business practices from all CSR
perspectives by supporting various Non Government Organizations and
participate in voluntary work projects and fund-raising activities to further
support our community. We will continue our commitment to embody
CSR in our everyday business activities.

Banco OCBC Weng Hang, S.A. « Annual Report 2015 21



BIAKBENREE

Independent Auditor’s Report

colic

BURBEMBES
HEGKZTRITRODERAAEF
(POEFPTRE L89B R 2 7))

BPEBERIENE24ENEEBKFTRITR
MERAR (AT EEBIT])FTH _Er 8 7wk
= WM BHREREEN2015F12A31ANEE
BEXR HEZALEFEMRSR  BRRERE
BERMBESRER M UREZBSHBEH
TR H AT AR RE o

ESRMBRRAAENEE

ERITHESEEERBEBMIFRITHRES 5
RORERHIE FE32/93/M5 A< K2 25/200558 1T
A IR AT AR BB 75 3R o5 ZE BI ) FT 3] /O 45 1 i Y
RAFMEFRABRENEM - ELETBER
BT BEAMESEE AT G E K
LERAMEREREL ERMBHRR A LR E
AR BENERABEENSEBUR - RIZER
TEHAEMNEEHhET  URRTFEE MERS
GRTACER

BB NEE
BANEEERERMINBREZEMHHRRE
HER o BPIRRRIRFIL T it € &) FEES 16
o ERAERBERERS - RILAN - BFIHRS
ETABEEMAR - RABTHAREENOR
B HEMEMALTBEERADERRE -

BRI REBRFIEBIITE R 2 CRECER) F1 (1
BEBRER)ETER - ELERNEREFIET
BERE  WREAIRNITER  AEERTEUSE
HMBREEENFHEIMERERRL -

22 E/KFRITROBABRDF « 20155 F K

Independent auditor’s report to the directors of
Banco OCBC Weng Hang, S.A.
(Incorporated in Macau with limited liability)

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Banco OCBC
Weng Hang, S.A. (“the Bank”) set out on pages 24 to 92, which comprise
the balance sheet as at 31 December 2015, the income statement, the
statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement for the year
then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these financial statements in accordance with the
requirements as set out in the Macau Financial System Act (Decree-
Law No. 32/93/M) and the Financial Reporting Standards issued
under Administrative Regulation No. 25/2005 of the Macau Special
Administrative Region (“Macau SAR"). This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining appropriate internal control
relevant to the preparation and the presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances; and
maintaining adequate and accurate accounting records.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. The report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Auditing Standards
and Technical Standards of Auditing issued by the Macau SAR. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s professional judgement,
including an assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a reasonable basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of, in all
material respects, the state of affairs of the Bank as at 31 December 2015
and of its profits and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with the requirements set out in Decree-Law No. 32/93M and the Financial
Reporting Standards of the Macau SAR.

This report is intended solely for filing with the Autoridade Monetaria de
Macau.

leong Lai Kun, Registered Auditor

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

24th Floor, B & C
Bank of China Building
Avenida Doutor Mario Soares

Macau

15 March 2016
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Income Statement

HZE2015F 12431 HIFFE

For the year ended 31 December 2015

(L BT F 7 517 ) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas)
Bt sE
Note 2015 2014
FLEMA Interest income 4(a) 874,481 869,803
FE ST H Interest expense 4(b) (326,272) (335,266)
BREUWA Net interest income 548,209 534,537
FRE WA Net fees and commission income 4(c) 162,584 148,336
BIEEERAZZEMITA Net gains from financial instruments
2 FWES held for trading 742 1,348
HAb YA Other income 4(d) 65,474 48,282
EE 2PN Operating income 777,009 732,503
EEL W Operating expenses 4(e) (336,875) (324,290)
HBRERREER X Operating profit before impairment
REFRIEZEEF losses and allowances charged on
loans and advances 440,134 408,213
BRZBEBER Impairment losses and allowances charged
AEfE TR on loans and advances 4(f) (7,210) (23,175)
e Operating profit 432,924 385,038
HEAFREEEE Net losses on disposal of tangible
ZFEKR fixed assets (243) (349)
BRF% B & A Profit before taxation 432,681 384,689
FiE Taxation 5(a) (55,599) (52,189)
BB %A Profit after taxation 377,082 332,500
RERMSBEER(LER] Effects of additional impairment
BRAEEMERREEB2FE allowances for loans in accordance
with Autoridade Monetaria de
Macau (“AMCM”) rules
R F 1% St A Profit after taxation 377,082 332,500
RIESE BIEMIE I BREZ Additional impairment allowances in 19(b)
B accordance with AMCM rules, net of tax  (v) = (3,626)
RESERGOHHEZHEETR Profit after taxation under AMCM rules 377,082 328,874

F28AEFN AWM EBRAM B RERH — B
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The notes on pages 28 to 92 form part of these financial statements.
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Balance Sheet

R2015412H318 At 31 December 2015
(LBPIBF T2 ) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas)
k=2
Note 2015 2014
&E ASSETS
BR& REBIRITRIZE - Cash and balances with banks, central banks
RIRTT M E b & B TR and other financial institutions 8 1,207,590 1,037,336
EHFBERTTA - Placements with banks, central banks and

hRIRTT R E A S BB R other financial institutions 9 239,502 1,809,307
BHRE Trade bills 10 9,490 13,760
BEERBREE Trading assets 1 68,281 11,478
BEEER N HMERE Advances to customers and other accounts 12 22,374,006 22,117,900
GHREBZERARR Amounts due from immediate holding 23(b)

BEINIEPNGIE/e ] company and fellow subsidiaries (ii) 6,345,774 8,141,576
A HE S REE Available-for-sale financial assets 14 1,854,721 1,645,526
BIFEEEE Tangible fixed assets 15 706,514 810,985
HEE Total assets 32,805,878 35,587,868
BREZREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
RITRIZE ~ PRIRTR Deposits and balances of banks, central

E 5 B 17 50 banks and other financial institutions 605 44,246

BEPAXR - EH - #FE Current, fixed, savings and

HihzmR other deposits of customers 28,385,909 30,286,129
BEITERNGE Certificates of deposit issued 16 397,915 =
BEEABARE Trading liabilities 17 107,775 15,838
e AT IR Current tax payable 5(c) 53,674 48,033
EEFIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 5(d) 105,675 111,844
A RE Other liabilities 18 336,294 417,920
ENEBIZERAR R Amounts due to immediate holding 23(b)

EEINIENGECE] company and fellow subsidiaries (i) 8,552 1,586,217
waw ] woEllenlides  ZUERBERY A
file Share capital 19(a) 120,000 120,000
1 Reserves 3,289,479 2,957,641
BRBaBE veslequdy Spablpy) | S0
BRRERREE TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 32,805,878 35,587,868

HESeENMRENR2016F3A15HEE
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2016

Na Wu Beng
Lee Tak Lim
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Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 15 March

The notes on pages 28 to 92 form part of these financial statements.

25



BRRERERNE

Statement of Changes in Equity

EE2015F12H31HIFFEE For the year ended 31 December 2015
(LBPIBF T2 ) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas)
2015
R b
R& ] EEgE BiiGE Efifif EERE BhSE RREREE
Bank
premises  Investment
Share General legal ~ revaluation  revaluation  Regulatory Unappropriated Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits equity
WISE151RES At 1 January 2015 120,000 184,200 120,000 541,521 91,652 170,321 1,849,947 3,077,641
BEEZ Deficit on revaluation of
ROTLERER bank premises net of tax - - - (82,825) - - - (82,825)
Bk#EL Fair value changes of available-
THEEHAR for-sale financia
AYREZEY assets net of tax - - - - 37,581 - - 37,581
Bt Transfer from reserve - - - (15,184) - - 15,184 -
Rkl Profit for the year - - - - - - 377,082 377,082
158128318 EH At 31 December 2015 120,000 184,200 120,000 443,512 129,233 170,321 220013 3,409,479
2014
Rt 7
i3 R —REE EERE Efrfi EfREE EERE BREE  hREsLE
Bank
premises — Investment
Share General Legal revaluation revaluation Regulatory - Unappropriated Total
Note capital reserve Teserve feserve reserve Teserve profits equity
WUEIR1BES At 1 January 2014 120,000 184,200 120,000 302,542 47,09 166,695 1,631,657 2,572,192
BRE Dividends paid 7(b) - - - - - - (120,000) (120,000)
BMREZ Appropriation to requlatory
B reserve net of tax 19(b)(v) - - - - - 3,626 (3,626) -
EMEEZ Surplus on revaluation of bank
ROMERRS preises net of tax - = = 248395 = = = 248395
BHRREL Fair value changes of available-
THEECHAR for-sale financia
AYEEZ2Y assets net of tax - - - - 44,554 - - 44,554
EREE Transfer from reserve - - - (9.416) - s 9416 S
ER7EH Profit for the year - - - - - - 332,500 332,500
01451253158 At 31 December 2014 120,000 184,200 120,000 541,521 91,65 170,321 1,849,947 3,077,641

F28EEFEN2H 2 MEBR A BHKRA — B

,T/'\ ®
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The notes on pages 28 to 92 form part of these financial statements.



BaiER

Cash Flow Statement

ER2015F 1231 HILF/E For the year ended 31 December 2015
(L BPIBF T2 ) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas)

Bt sE
Note 2015 2014
REETEHM(EH), EEz Net cash (used in)/from
Be®®E 2 operating activities 22(a) (467,853) 838,165
REEE Investing activities
BABLETEE Purchase of tangible fixed assets (24,544) (14,195)
BARMEESREE Purchase of available-for-sale financial
assets (252,617) (15,953,633)
HERRETEEE Proceeds from disposal of tangible
fixed assets - 73
HEREBERAHEESHEE Proceeds from sales and redemption of
available-for-sale financial assets 368,434 17,951,942
BB Dividends received 3,748 2,982
Eﬁl?ﬁﬁ{%iﬂlﬁ‘ﬁ&iziﬁﬁggﬁ Net cash from investing activities 95,021 1,987,169
RMEEE Financing activity
TR Dividends paid 7(b) = (120,000)
AREEHMEAZRAEFM  Netcashusedinfinancingactivity - S (120,000)
HERZERHELER (HL), &0 Net (decrease)/increase in cash
and cash equivalents (372,832) 2,705,334
RENZERBEELEAMN1A1848 Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 7.583,188 4,877,854
HeRZERBELEAR Cash and cash equivalents
128318 &8 at 31 December 22(b) 7,210,356 7,583,188
FEHELEBETHHESREBAIE . Cash flows from operating activities
include:
2B Interest received 913,950 855,776
EFFIE Interest paid 371,269 301,116

F28EEFENHZMAEBERA BRI —E  The notes on pages 28 to 92 form part of these financial statements.
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

1 Reporting entity
Banco OCBC Weng Hang, S.A. (“the Bank") was incorporated in
Macau on 2 September 1963. The Bank is engaged in commercial

banking and related financial services. The Bank has its registered
office and principal place of business at 241 Avenida de Almeida
Ribeiro, Macau.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Principal accounting policies

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements as set out in Decree-Law No. 32/93/M
and the Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRSs"”) issued under
Administrative Regulation No. 25/2005 of the Macau Special
Administrative Region (“Macau SAR").

A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the
Bank is set out below.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board
of Directors on 15 March 2016.

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that financial
instruments classified as trading, designated at fair value through
profit or loss and available-for-sale are stated at their fair values
as explained in the accounting policies set out in note 2(e).

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Macau Patacas,
which is the Bank’s functional currency. All amounts have been
rounded to the nearest thousands, except when otherwise
indicated.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
MFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(d) Use of estimates and judgements (continued)
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an

(e)

ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised

in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of MFRSs
that have significant effect on the financial statements and major
sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 3.

Financial instruments

()

Initial recognition

The Bank classifies its financial instruments into different
categories at inception, depending on the purpose for which
the assets were acquired or the liabilities were incurred.
The categories are: fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, available-for-sale financial assets and other
financial liabilities.

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value,
which normally will be equal to the transaction price plus,
in case of a financial asset or financial liability not held
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset or issue of the financial liability. Transaction costs on
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are expensed immediately.

The Bank recognises financial assets and financial liabilities
on the date it becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. A regular way purchase or sale of financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss is recognised using trade date accounting. Other
financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised using
settlement date accounting. From these dates, any gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recorded.
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(e) Financial instruments (continued)
(ii) Classification

Fair value through profit or loss

This category comprises financial assets and financial
liabilities held for trading, and those designated at fair
value through profit or loss upon initial recognition, but
exclude those investments in equity instruments that do
not have a quoted market price and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured.

Trading financial instruments are financial assets or
financial liabilities which are acquired or incurred
principally for the purpose of trading, or are part of
a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is evidence of
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking.
Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
accounted for as trading instruments.

The Bank has the option to designate financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition when:

— the assets or liabilities are managed, evaluated and
reported internally on a fair value basis;

— the designation eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch which would otherwise
arise;

— the asset or liability contains an embedded
derivative that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required under the
contract; or

— the separation of the embedded derivatives from
the financial instrument is not prohibited.

Financial assets and financial liabilities under this
category are carried at fair value. Changes in the fair
value are included in the income statement in the
period in which they arise. Upon disposal or repurchase,
the difference between the net sale proceeds or net
payment and the carrying value is included in the income
statement.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(e) Financial instruments (continued)
(ii) Classification (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market, other than (1) those that the Bank
intends to sell immediately or in the near term, which
will be classified as held for trading; (2) those that the
Bank, upon initial recognition, designates as at fair
value through profit or loss or as available-for-sale; or
(3) those where the Bank may not recover substantially
all of its initial investment, other than because of credit
deterioration, which will be classified as available-for-
sale. Loans and receivables mainly comprise loans and
advances to customers and bank, and placements with
banks, central banks and other financial institutions.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less impairment losses, if
any (note 2(j)).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are designated as available-for-sale
or are not classified in any of the other two categories
above. They include financial assets intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time, but which may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in the
market environment.

Available-for-sale financial assets are carried at fair
value. Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes
in the fair value are not recognised in the income
statement and are accumulated separately in equity,
except for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains
and losses on monetary items such as debt securities
which are recognised in the income statement.
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(e) Financial instruments (continued)
(ii) Classification (continued)

— Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)
Investments in equity securities that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be measured reliably, and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of
such unquoted equity securities are carried at cost less
impairment losses, if any (note 2(j)). Interest income
from debt securities calculated using the effective
interest method and dividend income from equity
securities are recognised in the income statement in
accordance with the policies set out in notes 2(o)(i) and
2(o)(iii) respectively.

When the available-for-sale financial assets are sold,
gains or losses on disposal include the difference
between the net sale proceeds and the carrying value,
and the accumulated fair value adjustments which are
released from the revaluation reserve.

—  Other financial liabilities
Financial liabilities, other than trading liabilities and
those designated at fair value through profit or loss, are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

(iii) Fair value measurement principles

The fair value of financial instruments is based on their
guoted market prices at the reporting date without any
deduction for estimated future selling costs. Financial assets
are priced at current bid prices, while financial liabilities are
priced at current ask prices.

If there is no publicly available latest trade price nor a quoted
market price on a recognised stock exchange or a price
from a broker/dealer for non-exchange-traded financial
instruments, or if the market for it is not active, the fair value
of the instrument is estimated using valuation techniques
that provide a reliable estimate of prices which could be
obtained in actual market transactions.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(e) Financial instruments (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Fair value measurement principles (continued)

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated
future cash flows are based on management'’s best estimates
and the discount rate used is a market rate at the reporting
date applicable for an instrument with similar terms and
conditions. Where other pricing models are used, inputs are
based on market data at the reporting date.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights
to receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or
where the financial asset together with substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership, have been transferred.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

The Bank uses the weighted average method to determine
realised gains or losses to be recognised in profit and loss on
derecognition.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid
(combined) instrument that includes both the derivative
and a host contract with the effect that some of the cash
flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to
a stand-alone derivative. The embedded derivatives are
separated from the host contract and accounted for as a
derivative when (1) the economic characteristics and risks of
the embedded derivative are not closely related to the host
contract; and (2) the hybrid (combined) instrument is not
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in the income statement.

When the embedded derivative is separated, the host
contract is accounted for in accordance with note (ii) above.
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(f) Hedging
The Bank has no financial instruments which qualify for hedge
accounting.

(g) Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

)

Bank premises that are held for the Bank’s administrative
use are stated in the balance sheet at their revalued
amount, being their fair values at the date of revaluation
less any subsequent accumulated depreciation. Revaluations
are performed with sufficient regularity by professional
qualified valuers to ensure that the carrying amount does
not differ materially from that which would be determined
using fair values at the reporting date. Changes arising on
the revaluation are generally dealt with in equity and are
accumulated in the bank premises revaluation reserve. The
only exceptions are as follows:

— when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be charged to
the income statement to the extent that it exceeds the
amount held in the reserve in respect of that same asset
immediately prior to the revaluation; and

— when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be credited
to the income statement to the extent that a deficit on
revaluation in respect of that same asset had previously
been charged to the income statement.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in the income statement on the date of
retirement or disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is
transferred from the revaluation reserve to retained profits
and is not reclassified to the income statement.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(g) Tangible fixed assets and depreciation (continued)

(ii)

Bank premises that are not held for the Bank’s administrative
use and other tangible fixed assets are stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any (note 2())).

Subsequent expenditure relating to an item of tangible
fixed assets that has already been recognised is added
to the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable
that future economic benefits, in excess of the originally
assessed standard of performance of the existing asset, will
flow to the enterprise. All other subsequent expenditure is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of tangible fixed assets are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the item and are recognised in the income statement on
the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
tangible fixed assets, less their estimated residual value, if
any, using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

— Freehold land and buildings
- Land
— Buildings

Not depreciated
50 years

25 to 50 years
3 to 10 years

— Leasehold land and buildings
— Office furniture, fixtures and
equipment

— Motor vehicles 5 years

(h) Operating lease
Where the Bank has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to the
income statement in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be

derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are

recognised in the income statement as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to the income statement in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

2 Principal accounting policies (continued)

(i)

()

Repossessed assets

In the recovery of impaired loans and advances, the Bank
may take possession of the collateral assets through court
proceedings or voluntary delivery of possession by the borrowers.
In accordance with the Bank’s accounting policy set out in note
2(j), impairment allowances for impaired loans and advances
are maintained after taking into account the net realisable value
of the repossessed assets. Repossessed assets continue to be
treated as securities for loans and advance. The Bank does not
hold any repossessed assets for its own use. Repossessed assets
are recorded at the lower of their carrying amount of the related
loans and advances and fair value less costs to sell at the date of
exchange. They are not depreciated or amortised.

Impairment of assets

The carrying amounts of the Bank’s assets are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence that financial assets are
impaired includes observable data that comes to the attention of
the Bank about one or more of the following loss events which
has an impact on the future cash flows on the assets that can be
estimated reliably:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or borrower;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the
borrower;

— disappearance of an active market for financial assets
because of financial difficulties; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, the carrying amount is reduced to
the estimated recoverable amount by means of a charge to the
income statement.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)

()]

Impairment of assets (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect
of loans and receivables, which are measured at amortised cost,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In this
case, the impairment losses are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Bank is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off against loans
and receivables directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that borrower are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are recognised in the
income statement.

(i) Loans and receivables

Impairment losses on loans and receivables are measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of these assets).
Receivables with a short duration are not discounted if the
effect of discounting is immaterial.

The total allowance for credit losses consists of two
components: individual impairment allowances, and
collective impairment allowances.

The Bank first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Bank determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is
or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)

®

Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Loans and receivables (continued)

The individual impairment allowance is based upon
management'’s best estimate of the present value of the
cash flows which are expected to be received discounted
at the original effective interest rate. In estimating these
cash flows, management makes judgements about the
borrower’s financial situation and the net realisable value of
any underlying collateral or guarantees in favour of the Bank.
Each impaired asset is assessed on its own merits.

In assessing the need for collective loan loss allowances,
management uses statistical modelling and considers
historical trends of factors such as credit quality, portfolio
size, concentrations, and economic factors. In order
to estimate the required allowance, the Bank makes
assumptions both to define the way the Bank models
inherent losses and to determine the required input
parameters, based on historical experience and current
economic conditions.

The accuracy of the impairment allowances the Bank makes
depends on how well the Bank can estimate future cash
flows for individually assessed impairment allowances and
the model assumptions and parameters used in determining
collective impairment allowances. While this necessarily
involves judgement, the Bank believes that the impairment
allowances on advances to customers are reasonable and
supportable.

Any subsequent changes to the amounts and timing of the
expected future cash flows compared to the prior estimates
that can be linked objectively to an event occurring after
the write-down, will result in a change in the impairment
allowances on loans and receivables and be charged or
credited to the income statement. A reversal of impairment
losses is limited to the loans and receivables’ carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)

()]

Impairment of assets (continued)

()

(i)

Loans and receivables (continued)
When there is no reasonable prospect of recovery, the loan
and the related interest receivables are written off.

Loans and receivables with renegotiated terms are loans
that have been restructured due to deterioration in the
borrower’s financial position and where the Bank has
made concessions that it would not otherwise consider.
Renegotiated loans and receivables are subject to ongoing
monitoring to determine whether they remain impaired or
overdue.

Available-for-sale financial assets

When there is objective evidence that an available-for-sale
financial asset is impaired, the cumulative loss that had
been recognised in the investment revaluation reserve is
reclassified to the income statement. The amount of the
cumulative loss that is recognised in the income statement
is the difference between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that asset previously recognised
in the income statement.

For unquoted available-for-sale equity securities that are
carried at cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the equity
securities and the estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset
where the effect of discounting is material. Such impairment
losses are not reversed.

Impairment losses recognised in the income statement in
respect of available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed
through the income statement. Any subsequent increase in
the fair value of such assets is recognised in equity.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt
securities are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair value
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised. Reversals of impairment
losses in such circumstances are recognised in the income
statement.

Banco OCBC Weng Hang, S.A. « Annual Report 2015

39



MR RME

Notes to the Financial Statements
(LUBPTET T2 - Batesh)

2 FTEETEE®

40

() EERMEGE)
(iii) R &E

EEERER - AR B RIME
BRABNEREEEEREM
IR ZMERIN REERIE
Bk KUAEEHERZBERKE
BIMAFEXCERD -

ERFBERFE - BAETZE
ERMRIY OIS

— HYEEEZAE
AkEeBERLEFERER
BEMEPZRSE - HFFEE
RER  eRAMSFHER
MR RERAYRZEENR
S B0 B B HT 40 R b 5 R ORER
ERENERRERE - BEX
BEBIETREMEESE
TELERSRE  AAEE
FBEURN A B EER SR
ENR/NEEMAS (B —fER
THEEN) ©

— BERKXZHER
BEEMNREENEMBNHIR
SHEEBEMBREAIWEEE
fr - AR E R ATERRIER
Ko RRBETEEEM R
EERBRL OIREEZEL
(REMAR) ANWEERE
B BRFEENKREENA
R E E R A BERSK
A fERE(MATEE) -

— RERKXZEME
AN PR E BT W 2 B0 fh T
BAEFNNEL - BIRERX
SHWHEME o

MEERER RRRZEER
FREME @ BWZERERKR
RENEFERIER - RER
REOEEERNFE AR
BmKRA e

E/KFRITVROBABRDF « 20155 F K

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

2 Principal accounting policies (continued)

®

Impairment of assets (continued)

(iii) Other assets
Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
each reporting date to identify indications that tangible fixed
assets (other than properties carried at revalued amount)
may be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised
no longer exists or may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro-rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal or value in use
(if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the
income statement in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(k) Cash and cash equivalents

0]

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and balances with
banks, central banks and other financial institutions, and short-
term, highly liquid inter-bank placements and investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees of the Bank.

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension
plan are recognised as expenses in the income statement as
incurred.

(m) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in the
income statement except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts
of tax are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
prior years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available,
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(m) Income tax (continued)

(n)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the year when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
reporting date and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such deduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available. Additional income taxes that
arise from the distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities if, the Bank
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities. The principle of offsetting usually
applies to income tax levied by the same tax authority on the
same taxable entity.

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities

(i) Financial guarantees issued
Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse
the beneficiary of the guarantee (“the holder”) for a loss
the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Bank issues a financial guarantee to customers,
the fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within other liabilities. The fair value
of financial guarantees issued at the time of issuance is
determined by reference to fees charged in an arm’s length
transaction for similar services, when such information is
obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by reference to interest
rate differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged
by lenders when the guarantee is made available with the
estimated rates that lenders would have charged, had the
guarantees not been available, where reliable estimates of
such information can be made.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(n) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (continued)

()

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred
income is amortised in the income statement over the term
of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued.
In addition, provisions are recognised in accordance with
note 2(n)(ii) if and when (1) it becomes probable that the
holder of the guarantee will call upon the Bank under the
guarantee, and (2) the amount of that claim on the Bank is
expected to exceed the amount currently carried in other
liabilities in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Bank has a legal or constructive obligation,
complaint or legal claim, arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

(o) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that economic
benefits will flow to the Bank and the revenue and costs, if

applicable, can be designated reliably, revenue is recognised in

the income statement as follows:

(i)

Interest income

Interest income for all interest-bearing financial instruments
is recognised in the income statement on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method.
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(o) Revenue recognition (continued)

()

Interest income (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
the interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Bank
estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of
the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and
similar options) but does not consider future credit losses.
The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts. Cash rebates granted in relation to
residential mortgage loans are capitalised and amortised to
the income statement over their expected life.

Interest income and expenses on all financial assets and
liabilities that are classified as trading or designated at fair
value through profit or loss are considered to be incidental
and are therefore presented in net income from financial
instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss
together with all other changes in fair value arising from the
portfolio. Net income from financial instruments designated
at fair value through profit or loss and net trading income
comprise all gains and losses from changes in fair value (net
of accrued coupon) of such financial assets and financial
liabilities, together with interest income and expense, foreign
exchange differences and dividend income attributable to
those financial instruments.

For impaired financial assets, the accrual of interest
income based on the original terms of the financial assets
is discontinued, but any increase in the present value of
impaired financial assets due to the passage of time is
reported as interest income.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)

(o)

(p)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(ii) Fees and commission income
Fees and commission income is recognised in the income
statement when the corresponding service is provided,
except where the fee is charged to cover the costs of a
continuing service to, or risk borne for, the customer, or is
interest in nature. In these cases, the fee is recognised as
income in the accounting period in which the costs or risk is
incurred or accounted for as interest income.

Origination or commitment fees received/paid by the Bank
which result in the creation or acquisition of a financial
asset are deferred and recognised as an adjustment to
the effective interest rate. When a loan commitment is
not expected to result in the draw-down of a loan, loan
commitment fees are recognised on a straight-line basis over
the commitment period.

(iii) Dividend income
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established. Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment is quoted
ex-dividend.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
into Macau Patacas at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated into Macau Patacas at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the reporting date. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated into Macau
Patacas using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

Exchange differences relating to investments at fair value through
profit or loss and derivative financial instruments are included
in net realised and unrealised gains/losses on trading financial
instruments or financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss. All other exchange differences relating to
monetary items are presented as gains/losses arising from dealing
in foreign currencies in the income statement. Differences
arising on translation of available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in reserves.
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(g) Related parties

(1

2)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Bank if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Bank;

(ii) has significant influence over the Bank; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel of the
Bank or the Bank’s parent.

An entity is related to the Bank if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Bank are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Bank or an entity
related to the Bank.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (1).

(vii) A person identified in (1)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provide key management personnel services to the
group or to the group’s parent.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(g) Related parties (continued)

(2) An entity is related to the Bank if any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)
Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

3 Accounting estimates and judgements
Note 25 contains information about the assumptions and their risk

factors relating to fair values of financial instruments. Other key

sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Impairment losses

(i)

Loans and advances

Loan portfolios are reviewed periodically to assess whether
impairment losses exist. The Bank makes judgements as to
whether there is any objective evidence that a loan portfolio is
impaired, i.e. whether there is a decrease in estimated future
cash flows. Objective evidence for impairment is described in
accounting policy note 2(j). If management has determined,
based on their judgement, that objective evidence for impairment
exists, expected future cash flows are estimated based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to those of the Bank. Historical loss experience is adjusted
on the basis of the current observable data. Management reviews
the methodology and assumptions used in estimating future cash
flows regularly to reduce any difference between loss estimates
and actual loss experience.

(i) Available-for-sale equity securities

The Bank determines that available-for-sale equity securities are
impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value below cost. The determination of when a decline
in fair value below cost is not recoverable within a reasonable
time period is judgmental by nature, so profit and loss could be
affected by differences in this judgement.
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(LUBPTET T2 - Batesh) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)
4 EEHA 4 Operating profit
(a) FE YA (a) Interest income
2015 2014
FEWARE : Interest income arising from:
—FEURAFEEFAERZ — financial assets not measured at
SREE fair value through profit or loss 874,481 869,803
Hr e of which:
— ERREZFEHWA — interest income from listed investments 27,022 29,584
—3EETIRE 2 F BUWA — interest income from unlisted investments 15,391 32,452
—BESREE 2 BHIA — interest income from impaired financial assets 13 102
(b) FEXZH (b) Interest expense
2015 2014
FEXZHIRE : Interest expense arising from:
—FEURAFEEFAERZ — financial liabilities not measured
eRaE at fair value through profit or loss 323,906 332,116
—EBE=EfRREaE — trading liabilities 2,366 3,150
326,272 335,266
He of which:
— PR FH - #ER — interest expense on current, fixed,
Hhr R e savings and other deposits of customers 313,068 322,234
—RITEZE « PFRBITR — interest expense on deposits and
Hih o i 2 FR balances of banks, central banks
FEXH and other financial institutions 10,838 9,882
() REERMBESWAFE (c) Net fees and commission income
2015 2014
R & RS WA Fees and commission income
—BRATFRED — Deposit related business 11,402 10,780
—BHEERER — Loan related business 19,473 20,330
— BB FE — Trade finance business 8,598 8,872
—BRAEREER — Credit cards 47,866 46,279
—-REEERGE — Stock-broking fees 41,652 32,005
—-EERREE - Wealth management fees 6,947 5,233
—HtwREBEMAS — Other agency commissions 24,697 22,693
—Hh — Others 1,949 2,144
162,584 148,336
A ERBIRZ RIS E KA WA FE S The above fees and commission were generated from financial
HREEFIEEERABRIFBEARTF instruments that are not held for trading nor designated at fair value
BERABZ EMIA - through profit and loss.
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4 EEBR e 4 Operating profit (continued)

(d) HAbWA (d) Other income
2015 2014
=V ON Dividend income 3,748 2,982
HNE B BN Gains arising from dealing in foreign currencies 60,396 26,325
H it Others 1,330 18,975
65,474 48,282
(e) BHEZH (e) Operating expenses
2015 2014
EERA Staff costs
4 RHAMEB KA Salaries and other staff costs 171,002 155,719
SRARAE F A AR Retirement benefit costs 10,733 9,998
181,735 165,717
IABFEFEZITH RFRESH  Premises and equipment expense,
excluding depreciation 16,602 19,334
e (FEE15) Depreciation (note 15) 34,653 26,773
4T AU T 15 5 P Operating lease charges 3,252 3,317
ZEEmEH Auditors’ remuneration 649 554
Hity Others 99,984 108,595
336,875 324,290
(f) EXBERAREFRE (f) Impairment losses and allowances charged on loans and
advances
2015 2014
BRI (B Individually assessed
—hE R - Charged 3,842 23,625
R B e (1 Y Collectively assessed
—RB(mB) - Charged/(released) 3,368 (450)
2 EEICREER 2 FIE R Net charged of impairment losses and
(FEE13) allowances for loans and advances (note 13) 7.210 23,175
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(LUBPTET T2 - Batesh) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)
5. BiE 5 Taxation
(a) WBEBRRZBIESR : (a) Taxation in the income statement represents:
2015 2014
NERF{IE — B FTERE T Current tax — Provision for Macau
R Complementary Tax
REF R Provision for the year 53,430 46,871
FEEEEEBE Over provision in respect of prior years = (211)
53,430 46,660
AEBIE-—pEARENE Current tax — The People’s Republic of
FEHB China (“PRC") withholding tax
IR [E A Provision for the year 3,152 5,035
FEEEEEBE Qver provision in respect of prior years (983) _
2,169 5,035
EIERIE Deferred taxation
R = B E A RE(O Origination and reversal of temporary
differences = 494
55,599 52,189
2015F ERFIMSHM AT ER IR Z The provision for Macau Complementary Tax is calculated at 12%
FREAFTERD &M BIRITHE12% (2014: 12%) of the Bank’s estimated assessable profits for the
(201445 : 12%):18 - year ended 31 December 2015.
2015F EHhEE A REFMBEFBENF IR The provision for PRC Withholding Tax is calculated at 7% (2014:
ZERBERTA B WS RIRITHET % 7%) of the assessable interest income for the year ended 31
(20145 : 7%)&TH » December 2015.
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5. BilE») 5 Taxation (continued)

(b) BBEXHRERERABRR2GHRAE (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit
AR : at applicable tax rate:
2015 2014
% %
Bk 25t A g A Profit before tax 432,681 100.00 384,689 100.00
B A5 A A1) 2 Notional tax on profit before
ZEFHIE taxation 51,922 12.00 46,163 12.00
BN Tax effect of non-deductible
HIETE expenses 1,862 0.43 1,167 0.30
FERERF U 2 Tax effect of non-taxable
TRIE income (337) (0.08) - =
FEFEEBBR Over provision in prior years (983) (0.23) (211) (0.05)
Hih Others (17) (0.00) 35 0.01
FiE AR IEMBEIFEME Withholding tax in the PRC 3,152 0.73 5,035 1.31
ERHBESH Actual tax expense 55,599 12.85 52,189 13.57
(c) TEEEBRAZFHHES ! (c) Current tax payable in the balance sheet represents:
2015 2014
SR PY B 1S 4 S A Provision for Macau Complementary Tax 53,674 46,871
e A R B TE IR Provision for PRC tax = 1,162
53,674 48,033
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(LUBPTET T2 - Batesh) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)
5. BilE(») 5 Taxation (continued)
(d) ERRBZELEHBAE (d) Deferred tax liabilities recognised
FANEERBERANERZELERIES The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
B2 EKEBMD REZEHMT balance sheet and the movements during the year are as follows:

EffAft RESE
HWEZ  RREIEM
ETHMEE ZREER

Revaluation  Additional B
of available- impairment SRATITHE
for-sale debt allowances Revaluation
financial under of bank S
assets AMCM rules premises Total
EEBERE : Deferred tax arising from:
20151 A1 &% At 1 January 2015 (12,498) (23,225) (76,121) (111,844)
HERNRRG) 125 (Charged)/credited to reserves (5,125) - 11,294 6,169
201512 A31 B % At 31 December 2015 (17,623) (23,225) (64,827) (105,675)
2014F 1 B1 A& At 1 January 2014 (6,423) (22,731) (42,249) (71,403)
sk AR Charged to income statement = (494) - (494)
R ERMER Charged to reserves (6,075) = (33,872) (39,947)
201412 A31 B &% At 31 December 2014 (12,498) (23,225) (76,121) (111,844)
B Eatoh - RITRIRE B2 B H A E(A Apart from the above, the Bank does not have any significant
BAEET A A VEIR B o unprovided deferred taxation arising for the year or as at the

reporting date.

6 EENEEAMS 6 Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments
2015 2014
EEHS Fees (e 240
E e Other emoluments 6,788 6,742
6,888 6,982
RATHAR R L E R B A R EGRM - Certain directors of the Bank received remuneration from group
25 MR B B ARAT o companies but no allocation has been made to the Bank.
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7 RE
(a) XFEERER
RITW S HIREHE2015F12 A31
AIEFEZRE (20145 « &) o

(b) REARERIKE ZEFEERE

RERNLESMHIREEF
REARE B (20144 -
TR mARRPI% 100T)

7 Dividends
(a) Dividends attributable to the year
The Bank did not propose the payment of dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2015 (2014: Nil).

(b) Dividends attributable to the previous year, approved and
paid during the year

2015 2014
No final dividend in respect of the previous
year, approved and paid during the year
(2014: MOP100 per ordinary share) - 120,000

8 HMEKLTEHEITHEZE - 54 8 Cash and balances with banks, central banks

TR E & B AR IR

and other financial institutions

2015 2014

e ek Cash balances 431,904 376,852
FRrRREBITRIE Balances with central banks 567,687 521,534
FHERITRI 08 Balances with banks 207,999 138,950
1,207,590 1,037,336

9 EHIEFEKIIERTEZE - PHREET 9 Placements with banks, central banks and

R H fth & B AE R 8 other financial institutions
2015 2014
BT MR 1T R 2 A Placements with banks 239,502 1,809,307
10 ESEE 10 Trade bills
2015 2014
ZHEE Trade bills 9,490 13,760

AITRER - AEE EEESHREBEERRE

(20144 : ) o

During the year, no allowance for impairment losses has been made in
respect of the above trade bills (2014: Nil).
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1M EERREE 11 Trading assets
BEEAREETEATESMIAEZERN Trading assets represent positive fair values of derivative financial
FTEERPEREBIERARAR S & instruments and include balances with the immediate holding
AR # 7,828,000 7T (20144 : JRPI ¥ company amounting to MOP7,828,000 (2014: MOP4,869,000).

4,869,0007T) ©

NREFERKREMERIE 12 Advances to customers and other accounts
(a) EEEZREMBEEINRRBEES (a) Loans and advances to customers and other accounts less
impairment allowances

2015 2014

BEER4EEE Gross advances to customers 22,265,189 21,950,541
REERZ BRI R EERE Individual impairment allowances for

(f#E13) impaired loans and advances (note 13) (23,436) (23,421)
B BERREEE Collective impairment allowances for

(fizE13) loans and advances (note 13) (11,209) (7,841)

22,230,544 21,919,279

AERFPEE Customer liability under acceptances 48,057 73,950

JEETFI & Accrued interest 43,499 82,968

HhARIA Other accounts 51,906 41,703

22,374,006 22,117,900
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1N2FFERK

(b) BEFERITED

HARE )

12 Advances to customers and other accounts
(continued)
(b) Advances to customers analysed by industry sectors

%)EE,TJXZ %*EE\J;E'E TR EER The information concerning advances to customers by industry
BB RARBREMREERS ° sectors is prepared by classifying the advances according to the
usage of the advances and is stated gross of any impairment
allowances.
2015 2014
®F AR ®P A
EXNBR BEFER BxesE BEFEX
Gross Impaired Gross Impaired
advances advances advances advances
to to to to
customers customers customers customers
ERMAFEAZER Advances for use in Macau
I BwEReR Industrial, commercial and
financial
YR Property development 1,034,073 20,678 632,973 20,678
YERE Property investment 2,240,705 - 2,610,155 -
BT Financial concerns 19,495 = 15,284 =
HrEF e T E S Wholesale and retail trade 1,256,348 - 1,628,275 -
%5_% Manufacturing 203,405 - 211,546 -
i ) BB ) R A Transport and transport
equipment 98,527 - 33,929 -
EEEH Information technology 809 - 500 -
BEEB2ER Share financing 82,020 - 52,245 -
Hi Others 993,739 - 1,183,260 -
A Individuals
BEE=EYE2EFH  Advances for the purchase of
residential properties 11,686,558 1,459 11,359,152 1,193
ERABER Credit card advances 209,559 548 214,223 840
Hi Others 3,992,396 3,136 3,602,070 3,482
21,817,634 25,821 21,543,612 26,193
E5mE Trade finance 387,882 - 383,182 -
R LUIMER 2 Advances for use outside
BX Macau 59,673 - 23,747 -
22,265,189 25,821 21,950,541 26,193
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(d)

EZEFEN
MEZEFPERER  HEARHER
BRI EEEDTMT

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

12 Advances to customers and other accounts

(continued)

(c)

Impaired advances to customers

The gross impaired advances to customers, market value of
collaterals held with respect of such advances and individual
impairment allowances are as follows:

2015 2014

B2 BREER AR Gross impaired advances to customers 25,821 26,193
BERFERBEERR Gross impaired advances to customers as a

ER@gBEsANl percentage of total advances to customers 0.12% 0.12%
BEEFPERZERRTE Market value of collateral held with respect

to impaired advances to customers 22,137 21,871

18 Bl (B 2E Individual impairment allowances 23,436 23,421

BEZEPEFREZERFE - AHEE
BRLBRER 2 TBRERE - Zat Rk
% B K R AT UK (] SRR 2 % IR (B 1R 1R
ERIFH S MERER - MxEFmER
BREME -

MR2015%F 12 A31H %2014 12 A 31
B ATETFRITRAEZREF - WE
WEZRITEEER - IMEREE R
B2 o

BEEE

72015912 A31 8 & 201412 A 31
B RTEBRHEEMKEIEE -

E/KFRITVROBABRDF « 20155 F K

(d)

Impaired advances to customers are individually assessed loans
with objective evidence of impairment on an individual basis.
Individually assessed impairment allowances were made after
taking into account the net present value of future recoverable
amounts in respect of such loans and advances, and the
collaterals held mainly comprised properties.

There are no impaired advances to bank nor individual
impairment allowances made on advances to bank as at 31
December 2015 and 31 December 2014.

Repossessed assets
At 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, the Bank did not
hold any repossessed assets.



13 EFERZBEERE

13Impairment allowances on loans and

advances to customers

2015
11 5 o4 ] &5t
Individual Collective Total

1A B & At 1 January 23,421 7,841 31,262
¥f 48 Additions 4,288 7,210 11,498
[o] 42 Releases (446) (3,842) (4,288)
S B E R FRE (M RE4()) Net charged to income statement

(note 4(f)) 3,842 3,368 7,210
g B & FF B bR 2 B3R Recoveries of advances written off

in prior years 361 - 361
F MR Amounts written off (4,188) = (4,188)
12 431 B#&#R(Hi7E12()) At 31 December (note 12(a)) 23,436 11,209 34,645

2014
&5 =g =5
Individual Collective Total
MOP’000 MOP'000 MOP'000
1H1B &% At 1 January 1,633 8,291 9,924
Frig Additions 24,607 2,575 27,182
[5] #% Releases (982) (3,025) (4,007)
XER([E148) W es 55 R 58 Net charge/(credit) to income
(P zE4(f)) statement (note 4(f)) 23,625 (450) 23,175

g B F B bR 2 B3R Recoveries of advances written off

in prior years 883 = 883
F N HBR Amounts written off (2,720) = (2,720)
12 3318 # &2 (FizE12(a)) At 31 December (note 12(a)) 23,421 7,841 31,262
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14 A ESREE 14 Available-for-sale financial assets
2015 2014
BHEES Debt securities
BHERIET—IE LT (BFES) Issued by sovereigns — unlisted (Treasury bills) 412,977 189,927
FEBEIT— LT Issued by corporates — listed 637,844 645,534
TFEEIT-ELET Issued by corporates — unlisted 91,737 101,652
SRIMEET - T Issued by financial institutions — listed 88,395 94,992
BRIEE T LT Issued by financial institutions — unlisted 444,740 482,350
77777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 1,675,693 1,514,455
BE Equity securities
EFEIT-ELET Issued by corporates — unlisted 134,714 93,317
EET— LW Issued by corporates — listed 44,314 37,754
77777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 179,028 131,071
1,854,721 1,645,526
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15 BB EEE 15 Tangible fixed assets

2015
- #1E -
RERER
Furniture,
fixtures,
$RITITHE equipment
Bank and motor &%
premises vehicles Total
RAH(LE - At cost or valuation:
201551 A1 B &% At 1 January 2015 803,309 165,006 968,315
NE Additions 14 24,530 24,544
e Disposals - (5,245) (5,245)
EhEE Deficit on revaluation (94,119) - (94,119)
B EHIRTITIEZ Elimination of accumulated depreciation
REHITE on revalued bank premises (16,604) - (16,604)
2015412 31 H & &k At 31 December 2015 692,600 184,291 876,891
2EHITE - Accumulated depreciation:
20151 A1 B &gk At 1 January 2015 33,681 123,649 157,330
REFEIR B (MIE4(e)) Charge for the year (note 4(e)) 18,852 15,801 34,653
o R Written back on disposals = (5,002) (5,002)
BEHEHRTITHEZ Elimination of accumulated depreciation
R E on revalued bank premises (16,604) = (16,604)
,291,5%,1,2,5,3,1,E,’%€% 77777777 A T,%?,Q?F?,’T‘per 2015 35,929 134,448 170,377
BREDFE ¢ Net book value:
2015412 A31 8 & At 31 December 2015 656,671 49,843 706,514
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15 BREEEE @ 15 Tangible fixed assets (continued)
2014
&AM~ FiE -
B RER
Furniture,
fixtures,
RITITHE equipment
Bank and motor BEr
premises vehicles Total
BAHEE : At cost or valuation:
201441 1B &8 At 1 January 2014 531,841 156,947 688,788
= Additions 43 14,152 14,195
HeE Disposals = (6,093) (6,093)
BHAK% Surplus on revaluation 282,267 - 282,267
HEHEHRITITHE 2 Elimination of accumulated depreciation
R E on revalued bank premises (10,842) = (10,842)
201412 A31 B &6k At 31 December 2014 803,309 165,006 968,315
2EHITE - Accumulated depreciation:
20141 A1 B &gk At 1 January 2014 31,433 115,637 147,070
RFE IR B (KiaEde)) Charge for the year (note 4(e)) 13,090 13,683 26,773
HE M Written back on disposals = (5,671) (5,671)
BEHEHRTITHEZ Elimination of accumulated depreciation
ZEHTE on revalued bank premises (10,842) - (10,842)
7270717471%71727573717@,%3 R At 31 December 2014 33,681 123,649 157,330
BRENEE : Net book value:
2014912 A31 8 &% At 31 December 2014 769,628 41,357 810,985
201511 A30H @ FIBHFETERAREN All of the Bank’s bank premises held for administrative use were
RITITH - ELHRBIRERITTE - AT E revalued by an independent firm of surveyors, Savills Valuation and
HHTENEXEERERAR(EHHEL Professional Services Limited as at 30 November 2015, who have
REBAEMBENERGE)EM - %A among their staff, Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors,
AT E S Y E R P EM B TR R9FE R with recent experience in the location and category of property being
THEREKE valued.
EREAFRHETRAENRITITIEZ AT Management has assessed that the fair value of bank premises held
fEER2015F 12 A31HE2015F 11 H30H for administrative use at 31 December 2015 is not materially different
WEEEANEL - from 30 November 2015.
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15 BB EEE®)

16

17

RIS TS R ETTRASMRITITILFE
(h 188 982,825,000 (20144F : H&E
B EREPIIE248,395,0007T) (EHEER
F9%594,119,0007C (20144 : EfH EHIBFT
#282,267,0007T ) 1A 40 Bk i AE 7% 78 )R P #E
11,294,0007C (20144 : JEF9#33,872,000
To)E) B ER R =P R - WAERITITIE
BhREERRE -

BRTRETRAR ZRITTIEAR AR R
ATTEAR - HEREER2015F 128318
JE AR F9H5 47,058,000 T (20144 : JEFIHE
48,470,0007T) °

RITITUE 2 BREVFEDHTT ¢

15 Tangible fixed assets (continued)

The net revaluation deficit on bank premises held for administrative
use of MOP82,825,000 (2014: net revaluation surplus of
MOP248,395,000) (being revaluation deficit of MOP94,119,000
(2014: being revaluation surplus of MOP282,267,000) net of
deferred tax of MOP11,294,000 (2014: MOP33,872,000)) have
been recognised in equity and accumulated in the bank premises
revaluation reserve.

The carrying amount of the Bank premises held for administrative
use would have been MOP47,058,000 (2014: MOP48,470,000) at
31 December 2015 had they been stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation.

The analysis of net book value of bank premises is as follows:

2015 2014
TERFY 7 K A SEHE Freehold held in Macau 272,656 319,676
TR Z 4 Leasehold held in Macau
— S HAFE 4 (B MHERFE10E LA %) — Short-term leases (less than 10 years unexpired) 384,015 449,952
656,671 769,628
ERITFNRE 16 Certificate of deposit issued

4 %8 /&R P9 % 397,915,000 7T 2 17 X &
(2014 BE)B AR EBIERARET - ME
BIER A REA LT RBRITHLZ A BE
RETEREELH U TRENE—LRE -

EERRAE
EEARBBEFEAMESRMIAZER
FEERBRIEEEBERARR S Z &t
AR 100,171,0007T (20144 : SBPH#E
10,969,0007C) ©

Certificate of deposit (“CD") of MOP397,915,000 (2014: Nil) was
first issued to the immediate holding company, which acted as the
arranger of the CD issuance and underwrote the entire issue for
further distribution to potential investors.

17 Trading liabilities
Trading liabilities represent the negative fair values of derivative
financial instruments and include balances with the immediate
holding company amounting to MOP100,171,000 (2014:
MOP10,969,000).
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18 Hitb&E 18 Other liabilities
2015 2014
A~ F & Interest payable 55,365 100,362
A Ak Acceptances outstanding 48,057 73,950
LN ER B R Provisions for liabilities and accrued charges 50,034 49,395
RE Cashier order 61,591 77,367
Hih Others 121,247 116,846
336,294 417,920
19 RAK @ 19 Share capital and reserves
(a) KA (a) Share capital
2015 2014
SMEREWRE Authorised, issued and fully paid:
1,200,0000% 2 & i A% 1,200,000 ordinary shares
FRURFIEE1007T of MOP100 each 120,000 120,000

LB EA A BRI R R AR The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as

B MAERKITHERE LEER—= declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share

A RIRE - FTE T BRERITHFIER at meeting of the Bank. All ordinary shares rank equally with

FEEHZHRFMAL regard to the Bank's residual assets.

(b) B (b) Reserves

(i) —RRFHE (i) General reserve
—MR BB RRRFEEREN LB The general reserve was set up from the transfer of
A[REE o unappropriated profits and is available for distribution.

(ii) EERE (ii) Legal reserve
EERERRMeREBREEZSE Legal reserve was set up in accordance with Article 60 of
%832,/ 93MIE AL B 6015 IR Decree Law No 32/93/M and Article 432 of the Macau
PEB NS 43216 2 #E ML © Commercial Code.

(iii) REEHHE (iii) Investment revaluation reserve
RESHFEREAIHEESHE Investment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative
EZRFAARBEEZS  MEZ net change in the fair value of available-for-sale financial
B ERKIETERR R E2(e) A assets until the assets are derecognised and is dealt with
IR - WEBHREBLIIFEERZF in accordance with the accounting policies in note 2(e). It
B WEARRE - does not represent realised profits and is not available for

distribution.
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19 RAR#E 2
(b) BE#(4)
(iv) SRATFTHL B 4 1

(v)

RITITH B4 A T IR R 2(g) A
FREVERITITUL B Z Z5 - RIT1T
HEHFHLIFECERZAE - X
J& A ATk

EERE

RIBESEREME18 935K 2R
T SREBUFHBHERRR
BHBRES T A DL &K
ERRE MEKZIEEERE
ERERMINZEEEHRBIIE
HBRE1% 2 —RERE - K17
Z B BORE R R IR R R 2() BT
TRETHERER - BB SRR
BEEEINEERZRIERRE
AT BERRFREL —FERER
FZREZFKFREFREERZ
EH EABRNBARERBARE
s - AEEEERBIIRET

19 Share capital and reserves (continued)
(b) Reserves (continued)
(iv) Bank premises revaluation reserve

(v)

Bank premises revaluation reserve has been set up and is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy adopted
for the revaluation of bank premises in note 2(g). It does not
represent realised profits and is not available for distribution.

Regulatory reserve

In accordance with Aviso n.°18/93-AMCM, financial
institutions are required to maintain a minimum level
of specific provision for a bad and doubtful loan at a
percentage depending on the overdue period of the
loan, and a general provision at a minimum of 1% (“the
minimum level”) of the total balance of performing loans
and certain credit-related off-balance sheet exposure. The
Bank recognises allowance for impairment losses on loans
and advances in accordance with the policy as set out in note
2(j). In case where such impairment allowances are lower
than the minimum level as required by AMCM, the Bank will
transfer an amount, which is equal to the difference between
the allowance and the minimum level, after adjustment
for taxation impact, from its unappropriated profits to the
regulatory reserve. The amount of regulatory reserve transfer
for the year is as follows:

2015 2014
—RRERS ZRERE 2 Increase in impairment allowances for
Ehn general provision 187 24,652
RIE R 2E R M Specific provision recognised under IAS
ERIBEEE BIEHIZEK but not under AMCM rules
EMZHEERE (187) (20,532)
BIESERBFIERIEI  Net increase in impairment allowances
ZREREFE under AMCM rules - 4,120
R E R 2 B8 Tax effect on the additional impairment
(P4 5E5(d)) allowances (note 5(d)) - (494)
- 3,626
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20 EERERUPZEREE

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

20 Off-balance sheet exposures

(a) IABBRARNEREE

IRNEBRARERNERNEERE
BERBHRZ RGBS - FHREHRF
R BEREZEEHEREMRS
UREEFRIAR  BREAUREHREER
MIERE  BRERE GSLEEEH
TAEMFRZER  ABERHRERET
BEPMY k2 EERRIER - HEESR
TR KR BERM B P LR
g Rz BB EaR o MR AREMDHER R
EEANEERH IS TSR - &
HNEBRBI TRRRKZRAERE

FEEERRNESHASIRESERRE
E£E011, 20158 2 RE - FrAZ AR
IENTF0%ZE100% o

AT BBHEERER 2 HRE SASE
ZHEZERE

(a) Contingent liabilities and commitments to extend credit

Contingent liabilities and commitments arises from forward
asset purchases, amounts owing on partly paid-up shares
and securities, forward deposits placed, asset sales or other
transactions with recourse, as well as credit-related instruments
which include, letters of credit, guarantees and commitments
to extend credit. The risk involved in these credit instruments is
essentially the same as the credit risk involved in extending loan
facilities to customers. The contractual amounts represent the
amounts at risk should the contract be fully drawn upon and
the client defaults. Since a significant portion of guarantees and
commitments is expected to expire without being drawn upon,
the total of the contract amounts is not representative of future
cash flows.

The risk weights used in the computation of credit risk weighted
amounts ranged from 0% to 100% in accordance with AMCM
Guideline Notice 011/2015-AMCM.

The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each
significant class of contingent liabilities and commitments:

2015 2014
HEEEBRIHER Direct credit substitutes 175,569 184,403
B 5 BB 2R ERE Trade-related contingencies 69,617 46,530
H qth A i Other commitments
— RAEAR 81 F — With an original maturity of

not more than 1 year 241,073

—RARHARR1 A £ — With an original maturity over 1 year 403,676 498,583
— A S EUY — Which are unconditionally cancellable 2,671,781 3,467,259
BT Total 3,561,716 4,196,775
=E R NESEE Credit risk weighted amount 473,169 460,647
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0 EEEBRUMCEABEE )
(b) BEAEE
MI2ABERBERALEEEEML
REMBIHER T EL LB 2 BEREAEN
T

ERERFIT KX

Expenditure authorised and contracted for

20 Off-balance sheet exposures (continued)
(b) Capital commitments
Capital commitments for acquisition of tangible fixed assets
outstanding at 31 December not provided for in the financial
statements were as follows:

2015 2014

6,149 9,048

EREERBRF K ZRAX

Expenditure authorised but not contracted for - -

(o) BB EEM
R12A318 @ REFAHEOLEER
' RRREENAEFREENT

(c) Operating lease commitments
As at 31 December, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases for properties and
equipment are payable as follows:

2015 2014
16A Within one year 1,486 1,974
15 A E{B5F A After one year but within five years 138 964
1,624 2,938

AT EHERXBALIEYEMS
B - HEFH-—ROT1Z24EA - &
MERIBENBEMERAESE - B
AOWTTEESAES -

The Bank leases a number of properties and items of equipment
under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of one to twenty-four months, with an option to renew
the lease when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases
includes contingent rentals.
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21

66

TEEMTA
AETAREMBAL - ABERTHSR
MRS ERAEERIEEME -

RTABONTET AR GRAREEET
Ko EMEAHRATTZEEERRES -
RAOITEABREIFE - XTZHEREER S
RASTERERKEREERSZ SRR
EZ2 ¥R 5 MEBZESHT A ZFHA
BHES 2 &Rt T EAEL o AT ER
B RZLEBT BEEh i ARE - HE
2015F 12 A3VBATBTEIARARBEZ
FERBESIREEABRAZ [EEA
BREE IR [BEREEBEIIIR -

(a) FTETEZEREH
TRARTVMELEARNBERNEES
B RENSGIHANST - WETHR
ZERBCHEENBEARRTRLIZS
B I TREREREE -

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

21 Derivatives financial instruments

Derivatives refer to financial contracts whose value depends on the
value of one or more underlying assets or indices.

The majority of the derivatives transactions were initiated in response
to customer demand and the remaining were economic hedges for
the Bank's fixed-interest rate loans and debt securities. No significant
speculative positions are maintained by the Bank. The Bank entered
into interest rate swaps to hedge its investments in fixed-rate debt
securities so as to achieve a floating rate return. The swaps have
approximately the same maturity profile as the financial instruments
being hedged. The Bank has not elected to adopt hedge accounting
in respect of these swaps. The positive and negative fair values of the
derivatives as at 31 December 2015 were reported within “trading
assets” and “trading liabilities” respectively on the balance sheet.

(a) Notional amounts of derivatives
The following tables provide an analysis of the notional amounts
of derivatives of the Bank by relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining periods to settlement at the reporting date.
The notional amounts of the derivatives indicate the volume
of outstanding transactions at the reporting date and do not
represent amounts at risk.

2015

150 E

B5% R

Over

1£R 1 year 5N E

Within  but within Over a5t
1 year 5 years 5 years Total
REAE R A 4 Forward exchange rate contracts 7,545,089 335,477 - 7,880,566
Mg HI A %) Interest rate swap contracts 36,050 51,500 - 87,550
REEEE A Equity contracts 4,159 = = 4,159
7,585,298 386,977 - 7,972,275
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(a)

(b)

21 Derivatives financial instruments (continued)

TTETHEHZEZHLH(E) (a) Notional amounts of derivatives (continued)
2014
19 LA+
B58 R
Over
1A 1 year
Within  but within SEPE A&r
1 year 5 years Over 5 years Total
RHEREY Forward exchange rate contracts 2,697,410 - - 2,697,410
FIREEHEH Interest rate swap contracts 35,020 87,550 = 122,570
RERMEE X Equity contracts 1,089 = = 1,089
2,733,519 87,550 - 2,821,069
TEIEZEERRMESE (b) Credit risk weighted amounts of derivatives

2015 2014

fERE 4 Exchange rate contracts 135,670 26,610
FEEEE 4 Interest rate swap contracts 129 519
IR H & 4 Equity contracts 336 =
136,135 27,129

STE BRI SEERTA 2 Rk
RS ERBESE011,20155% 2 &
RFERLERTEANBERIVARR S HF
ERAOR - BIEIE - [ERAH) - FRig
Hi - REHE AT 2 BB INEN T
0%Z%E100% °

BEHBBURARERFELEZE
@,

Credit risk weighted amount refers to the amount as computed
in accordance with AMCM Guideline Notice 011/2015-AMCM on
capital adequacy and depends on the status of the counterparty
and the maturity characteristics. The risk weights used range
from 0% to 100% for exchange rate, interest rate swap and
equity contracts.

These amounts do not take into account the effects of bilateral
netting arrangements.
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22 BERERMEE

(a) BiANGFEREETFH(ER) ELE

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

22 Notes to the cash flow statement
(@) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to

net cash (used

2R REHRR in)/from operating activities

2015 2014
=E ) Operating activities
R 75 A A Profit before taxation 432,681 384,689
FHEMT : Adjustments for:

e Depreciation 34,653 26,773

HEEFEEEE ZFIBK Net losses on disposal of tangible fixed assets 243 349

PEEREELZ Amortisation of net discount/(premium) of

W OFE) debt securities 526 (9,845)

DEBITERE 2T Amortisation of discount of certificates of

deposit issued 120 -

g S A Dividend income (3,748) (2,982)

AN SR TS 5K Foreign exchange loss 40,193 17,390

BRUREER K N R B Impairment losses and allowances

charged on loans and advances 7,210 23,175

B M ER Net loans and advances written off (3,827) (1,837)

508,051 437,712
RAEARR A= Az A £z Decrease in placements with banks with

RITEREOR D original maturity over three months 1,129,689 674,030
B 5 2R Decrease in trade bills 4,270 139,635
BEEAGEEE N Increase in trading assets (56,803) (3,532)
ZEE R EABRIEE Increase in gross advances to customers and

other accounts (259,489) (2,483,147)
[RAER A=A Lz Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from

FHREBERAT R immediate holding company and

BESG) =N PO fellow subsidiaries with original maturity

() over three months 1,369,837 (1,445,776)
SRITRAIZE ~ PRIBITR (Decrease)/increase in deposits and

Hibh o migiE 2 E balances of banks, central banks and

Crd),/#hn other financial institutions (43,641) 42,080
BEANR  FHEREEFR (Decrease)/increase in current, fixed,

(R ) /1 savings and other deposits of customers (1,900,220) 3,431,975
TR AN Increase in certificates of deposits 397,765 =
BEABA BN Increase in trading liabilities 91,937 2,183
Hib & &R Decrease in other liabilities (81,626) (23,082)
BHEER AT RRZNEBAT (Decrease)/increase in amounts due to

ZERORD),/ immediate holding company and

fellow subsidiaries (1,577,665) 118,033
REETH(ER) EEZ Net cash (used in)/from the operations

ReRHE (417,895) 890,111
BRI BT R Macau Complementary Tax and

HEE AR AR BIFEIR PRC Withholding Tax paid (49,958) (51,946)
RELIB(ER) EEz Net cash (used in)/from

REeFE operating activities (467,853) 838,165
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(b) RERZEFRECEBEZSM (b) Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents
2015 2014
e MFHRERITRZ - Cash and balances with banks, central banks
R IRIT N HM S m#EZIE  and other financial institutions 1,207,590 1,037,336
[RAEARR & = 1 A LA E 88 Placements with banks, central banks and
TR TR ZE « RRIEIT other financial institutions with original
R EH b5 B R maturity within three months - 440,116
FHREBZERA R REN B Amounts due from immediate holding
NR)FRIB company and fellow subsidiaries
— e RFRIRITRE — Cash and balances with banks,
RO SRTT N E b & B central banks and other
EOE] financial institutions 75,678 80,182
—RAHRE A=A LARNEELR - Placements with banks, central banks
FHERITRIZE « R RERTT and other financial institutions with
KE A& BB I8 original maturity within three months 5,514,111 5,935,572
AEEEZ ERMEE Available-for-sale financial assets
— BT ES — Treasury bills 412,977 89,982
7,210,356 7,583,188
ZEAREAEALRS 23 Material related party transactions
(a) TETHAEZHME (a) Key management personnel remuneration
FETBRABZHE - BIEME6RTH Remuneration for key management personnel, including amounts
BIEMNRITESHRIE - BT - paid to the Bank’s directors as disclosed in note 6, is as follows:
2015 2014
HHE B & A Short-term employee benefits 16,224 15,187
BEER 12 1B A Post-employment benefits 1,462 1,337
17,686 16,524
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ERBEAETRZ 2
(b) EMEBRAARRAZHBAT XS

REFR - ATREBIZERARERKX
FTRITERAPAKRARERMBRARZR
5 UE-REFXRBREBXZGE

Te

BIRBEAMBREEMBT 25 R
fmER FAZKX - BEERERA 4
BIAE 2 W& A AR R ERFEDIIA

23 Material related party transactions (continued)
(b) Transactions with immediate holding company and fellow
subsidiaries
During the year, transactions with the Bank’s immediate holding
company, OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited and fellow subsidiaries
were entered into by the Bank in the ordinary course of business
and on normal commercial terms.

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the income and expense for the
year, on and off-balance sheet outstandings at the reporting

T date and corresponding average balances for the year are set out
below:
(i) MAKRZH (i) Income and expense
2015 2014
FEUA Interest income 111,511 87,321
FESH Interest expenses (13,184) (13,000)
e Other income - 850
RHIEEER®ZZ Net profit from financial instruments
St T A 255 A held for trading 742 1,348
=2iEE Operating expenses (30,507) (30,235)

(i) EERERAZER

&= Assets

(ii) On-balance sheet outstandings

Ending balance Average balance
2015 2014 2015 2014

B4 NFEREITRZE «  Cash and balances with

hRIBITREM SR banks, central banks and

Mg Thog other financial institutions 76,734 757,917 602,053 561,381
TEHATF IR TTIRI 2 - Placements with banks,

FRRERITREMER  central banks and other

W FIR financial institutions 6,252,163 7,349,967 6,453,651 4,208,604
EEERNREMIES  Advances to customers and
other accounts 16,877 33,692 30,114 18,950

6,345,774 8,141,576 7,085,818 4,788,935
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(b) EBERAFAEEBRZAMNBATIZR S
()
(i) EEABERAZELE)

23 Material related party transactions (continued)
(b) Transactions with immediate holding company and fellow
subsidiaries (continued)
(ii) On-balance sheet outstandings (continued)

#EH LR FigaEeR
Ending balance Average balance
2015 2014 2015 2014
=L Liabilities
$R1TEZE - P R4EE7T  Deposits and balances of
REAM S mEE 2 banks, central banks, and
F= other financial institutions 7,913 1,578,856 265,972 919,715
BEMER - EH Current, fixed, savings and
HEREMIER other deposits of customers 218 218 218 218
EmmE R Other liabilities 421 7,143 1,789 1,380
8,552 1,586,217 267,979 921,313
(iii) EERBERP 2 (iii) Off-balance sheet outstanding
HERER TigEeR
Ending balance Average balance
2015 2014 2015 2014
EHEH Contract amounts
HEEESAER Direct credit substitutes - = - 515
(iv) fTESRMI Az &8 (iv) Derivative financial instruments outstanding
HERER T EEeR
Ending balance Average balance
2015 2014 2015 2014
HEREHE Notional amounts
rHIE R A4 Forward exchange rate
contracts 4,825,773 2,340,096 4,006,378 1,657,781
TR HI A 49 Interest rate swap contracts 87,550 122,570 87,550 122,570
IR H 8 & 4 Equity contract 4,159 1,089 6,331 1,538

() EZER
2ERMN2015F12831B 2 HBE R
HEAT (20144  4E) ©

(d) FR- BERECALABETFEEALZ
FIALE AR ER K ERH (20145 ¢
&) o

(c) Loans to directors
Aggregate amount of relevant loans outstanding during the year
and at 31 December 2015 is Nil (2014: Nil).

(d) During the year, no allowance for impairment losses has been

made in respect of the above advances to related parties (2014:
Nil).
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AITDHIERR - BFRRE - NEEAKTT
FrASHTRBERR - NMTAEBEZHRER
EEZMLERENRLS - ABH - 5HE
ERRZHEERR  RBESER W5
F\be K EERR - ZFRBERBE - EF
RRBENREESIRKIEECRE M
THERREEEH ZEENREZRS
REERBERZES  FEHR - A
BB EETERERLIBLRE - AER
FLERRRIR TR AEH -

AHEDIRATE S ERR - BREE
REBMEE - REMER URAEEER
ZEH -

(a) FERBERE
EERBIRNRZ S H FREELBITHA
- AREATHENR  BEZRE B
B TAETARHEMER ZEEIER
BAATZAKEEEIFNRERES
RHITEERRER -

I

FERREESBINEMEY  EE
SEBRNERRETREREEN G
RYtEHMEER - RTNEERRGET
BT EENER  FEfZEERMNE
Fr ERDBESLRENBE - iR
BRFSREEBEHAESI R
RIAT R R 2% W0 & R RISR B E AR
EEROREER -

EERBRERESIEHNATHNERTF
it YEBREZES ST B @RI
%o ERFMABEAEERRKE
RERE FEZERE BEFX0ER
7 FEERREBEREK -
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24 Financial risk management

The Bank has established policies, procedures and limits to manage
various types of risk that the Bank is exposed to. Risk management
processes and management information systems are in place to
identify, measure, monitor and control credit risk, liquidity risk market
risk and operational risk. The risk management policies, procedures
and limits are approved by the Board of Directors or its designated
committee, and are monitored and reviewed regularly by the relevant
risk management committees, such as the Credit Committee and the
Asset and Liability Management Committee (“ALMCO"). Internal
auditors perform regular audits and independent checking to ensure
compliance with the policies and procedures.

This note presents information about the Bank’s exposure to each
of the above risks, the Bank’s objectives, policies and processes
for measuring and managing risks, and the Bank’s management of
capital.

(a) Credit risk management
Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counterparty in a
transaction may default. It arises from the lending, trade finance,
treasury, derivatives and other activities undertaken by the Bank.
The Board of Directors has delegated the Bank’s credit risk
management to the Credit Committee, which is chaired by the
Bank’s General Manager.

The credit risk management function is independent of the
business units. It oversees the implementation of credit policies
and ensures the quality of credit evaluation and approval. Credit
approval is conducted in accordance with the Bank's credit policy,
which defines the credit extension criteria, the credit approval
and monitoring processes, the loan classification system and
impairment policy. The credit policy also takes into account the
guidelines issued by the AMCM and accounting standards issued
by Macau SAR with respect to large exposures and impairment
requirements.

Guidelines to manage credit risk have been laid down in
the Bank’s Loaning Manual, which is regularly reviewed and
approved by the Credit Committee. The Loaning Manual covers
the delegated lending authorities, credit extension criteria, credit
monitoring process, loan classification system, credit recovery
and impairment policy.



24 i ERMER &)
(a) EEABREE(H)

(i)

(i)

EEEERR
TEEE-—REMNAGRREUEE
REPIRE o BriE B EWISIN -
EREERARNIEFEREER
HEBIE - RITAEZHEBERERER
UHEBFERZHFARZNE
FEERR  UWEREHZEERS
BTG B EFPME - ATEH
E—EERRMBRZHFHTEH
MR EEBZREL - A1T7°E
B AE B 1T 5 R AR 9 48 SR FIE 3K
AEBREARRE  THwERE
EFREBREIFESRR - RN1TIRD
EERAEE  BERERERNR
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HEERZAENEERR - @5
B E R M BEREER -
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24 Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Credit risk management (continued)

()

(i)

Corporate credit risk

The corporate lending is generally made to customers with
strong financial background. In addition to market targeting,
the principal means of managing credit risk is the credit
approval process. The Bank has policies and procedures to
evaluate the potential credit risk of a particular counterparty
or transaction and to approve the transaction. For corporate
clients, the Bank has a detailed risk grading system that
is applied to each counterparty on a regular basis. The
Bank also has limits for exposure to individual industries
and for borrowers and groups of borrowers, regardless of
whether the exposure is in the form of loans or non-funded
exposures. The Bank also has a review process to ensure the
proper level of review and approval depending on the size of
the facility and risk grading of the credit.

The Bank undertakes ongoing credit analysis and monitoring
at several levels. The credit policies promote early detection
of counterparty, industry or product exposures that require
special attention. The Credit Committee oversees the
overall portfolio risk as well as individual problem loans and
potential problem loans on a regular basis.

Retail credit risk

The Bank’s retail credit policy and approval process are
designed for the fact that there are high volumes of relatively
homogeneous, small value transactions in each retail loan
category. Because of the nature of retail banking, the credit
policies are based primarily on statistical analyses of risks
with respect to different products and types of customers.
The Bank monitors its own and industry experience to
determine and periodically revise product terms and desired
customer profiles.

(iii) Credit-related commitments

The risks involved in credit-related commitments and
contingencies are essentially the same as the credit
risk involved in extending loan facilities to customers.
These transactions are, therefore, subject to the same
credit application, portfolio maintenance and collateral
requirements as for customers applying for loans.
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24 B EE 2) 24 Financial risk management (continued)
(a) EERBEE(Z) (a) Credit risk management (continued)

(iv) EERBNEH (iv) Concentrations of credit risk
SERBMERRR—ERFHF Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in
REME - BERTERENT geographic, economic or industry factors similarly affect
2 MzEEENEECERRY groups of counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is
TITHBBEAREBEES - KRENK material in relation to the Bank’s total exposures. The Bank
REEER AR KB A T2 38 does not have significant exposure to any individual or group
Hh - AT EEERBEA  BER of customers or counterparties except for the amount due to
FRRSEFHFEERRER - the immediate holding company and fellow subsidiaries.

(1) mEERE (1) Maximum exposure
ETET AR R EAD The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
FEARANBERT MEAH date without taking into consideration of any collaterals
=azERR  EFREEAE held or other credit enhancements is represented by the
FAZ B IE R E E SRR carrying amount of each financial assets in the balance
BEEENERERNE ZERS sheet after deducting any impairment allowance. A
[ e i st an T summary of the maximum exposure is as follows:
2015 2014
FHERTTRIZE « PRIFITR Balances with banks, central banks
Hh & B RUIR and other financial institutions 775,686 660,484
EHERERTTEE - P REE7T  Placements with banks, central banks
REfh & g g IE and other financial institutions 239,502 1,809,307
=S Trade bills 9,490 13,760
EEAREE Trading assets 68,281 11,478
EFERREMIRIE Advances to customers and
other accounts 22,374,006 22,117,900
FEREARREK B AR Amounts due from parent company
WIE and fellow subsidiaries 6,345,774 8,141,576
AIHHEEZ SRMEE Available-for-sale financial assets 1,854,721 1,645,526
BISER R EME(ZAAR 2 Financial guarantees and other credit
AR related contingent liabilities 245,186 230,933
BEFUREREMEERAAR 2 Loan commitments and other credit
AHE related commitments 3,316,530 3,965,842
35,229,176 38,596,806
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24 Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Credit risk management (continued)
(iv) Concentrations of credit risk (continued)
(2) Credit quality of loans and advances
Advances to bank are only made to bank with good
credit rating. The credit quality of advances to
customers can be analysed as follows:

2015 2014
R BB Gross advances to customers
— B A IERIE — neither past due nor impaired 21,932,428 21,633,455
—BEEIERE — past due but not impaired 306,940 290,893
—RE (FTEE12(c) — impaired (note 12(c)) 25,821 26,193
22,265,189 21,950,541
Hep o Of which:
BEEERBAEE Gross advances to customers
— 1% A% Grade 1 : Pass 22,118,843 21,867,850
—28% : FFRIEEER Grade 2 : Special mention 120,525 56,499
—3%  TAEE Grade 3 : Substandard 20,944 20,678
—4#% - ERIRIA Grade 4 : Doubtful 1,441 2,270
—5#% - 1Bk Grade 5 : Loss 3,436 3,244
22,265,189 21,950,541

RTRBREEBSERAE
RANERSEHEEHE
Ko

BHEERENTEEERER
DT -

The Bank classifies the loans and advances in accordance
with the loan classification system adopted by the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA").

The ageing analysis of advances to customers that are
past due but not impaired is as follows:

2015 2014
BEEIEREZ X P ER %  Gross advances to customers that are
past due but not impaired
—BEI3E A AT — past due 3 months or less 304,742 283,041
—6f& A sk A TE3E A A £ — 6 months or less but over 3 months = 5,099
— 155 A ME6ME A A — 1 year or less but over 6 months 2,198 2,753
306,940 290,893
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24 Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Credit risk management (continued)
(iv) Concentrations of credit risk (continued)

()

(3)

Credit quality of loans and advances (continued)

As at 31 December 2015, there were no advances to
customers that would be past due or impaired had the
terms not been renegotiated (2014: Nil).

Credit quality of financial assets other than advances to
customers and bank

Credit risk of treasury transactions is managed in the
same way as the Bank manages its corporate lending
risk and risk gradings are applied to the counterparties
with individual counterparty limits set. It is the Bank's
credit policy not to invest debt securities that are below
the grading of BBB by Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services
or their equivalents unless it is approved by the Credit
Committee.

At the reporting date, the credit quality of investment
in debt securities analysed by designation of external
credit assessment institution, Standard & Poor’s Ratings
Services or their equivalents, is as follows:

2015 2014

AA-ZEAA+ AA- to AA+ 705,928 682,457
A-EA+ A- to A+ 511,681 370,004
RRA- Lower than A- 76,018 77,283
E R Unrated 382,066 384,711
1,675,693 1,514,455
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24 Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Credit risk management (continued)
(iv) Concentrations of credit risk (continued)
(4) Collaterals and other credit enhancements

The Bank holds collaterals against advances to customers
in the form of mortgages over property, other registered
securities over assets, cash deposits and guarantees.

AHBEIERENSREEM An estimate of the fair value of collaterals and other

FAENER G R EMERREA

credit enhancements held against past due but not

BAFEEEIOT : impaired financial assets is as follows:
2015 2014
BAEERECCREE Fair value of collaterals and other
[IESZ =P % ilnY5e credit enhancements held against
HfsRigA < financial assets that are past due
NEEE but not impaired 1,148,787 1,324,226

BEPERRITERRNEDWE
& &b o T M RE 12 A

3= o

(b) RBESRERERE

nBECRBREEREERENENEE
BREXIENIIRNERORR - AITEFT
InBEEERERBR - BEREMR
R RARBES

nBECHAEREERBEERES
MEHER BEERBERZEEHS
REERE  MERNM  RREE UK
BEREMAZERDETRABRNES
HIEWALTHEX  BEEEERDESR
REEEE  FHHTERECHRDE
EHREREERF > @R  SAEREER
Bl WREZEHRBESERE
HBERE  EFERERYE S RMRKE
RER  #HEBERSECRBRAS
MFETIR  WHEFRABDESREREE
RERRERREARSREEBEZR
BB Rz o

Analysis of credit risk concentration by the industrial
sector of advances to customers is disclosed in note 12.

(b) Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk of the Bank's inability to fund an increase
in assets or meet its obligations as they fall due. The Bank has
established liquidity management policies for ensuring adequate
liquidity is maintained at all times.

Liquidity is managed day-to-day by the treasury under the
direction of ALMCO. ALMCO, which comprises personnel
from senior management, treasury function, risk management,
financial management and other business areas that could
affect liquidity risk, is responsible for overseeing the liquidity
risk management, in particular implementation of appropriate
liquidity policies and procedures, identifying, measuring and
monitoring liquidity risk, and control over the liquidity risk
management process. The Board of Directors approves the
liquidity risk strategy and policies, maintains continued awareness
of the overall liquidity risk profile, and ensures liquidity risk is
adequately managed and controlled by senior management
within the established risk management framework.
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24 Financial risk management (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk management (continued)

To cater for short term funding requirements during ordinary
course of business, sufficient liquid assets are held and also
access to the interbank market is maintained. In addition,
adequate standby facilities are maintained in order to meet any
unexpected and material cash outflow. The Bank also performs
regular stress tests on its liquidity position to ensure adequate
liquidity is maintained at all times. The following tables set
out the detail of the analysis of the Bank’s material assets and
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
periods at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date.

(i) Maturity profile of the assets and liabilities based
on the remaining period at the reporting date to the

= contractual maturity date
2015
1f8A 3faR
NER NEE  1ENE
3fEAR 1#h E5ER
Over Over Over
MEEZ  1fBAM  Tmonth 3months  year  SENL
Repayable ~ Within butwithin but within  but within Over it am
ondemand  1month 3 months Tyear ~ Syears  Syears  Undated Total
BE Assets
REREHEARE  DRBIR Cash and balances with banks, central banks and
EfbRRIE other financial institutions 1,207,590 - - - - - - 1,207,590
THERRORE  RETR Placements with banks, central banks and other
A SRmETE financial institutions - - - 139502 - - - 139502
85328 Trade bill 731 4,448 4311 - - - - 9490
BERRAE Trading assets - - - - - - 68281 68,281
REEH Advances to customers 410564 953,608 725864 2,664,083 6,488,128 10,988,298 - 22,230,545
FHEBERATRAZMEATSE  Amounts due from immediate holding company and
fellow subsidiaries 76,734 5051591 895133 322316 - - - 6,345,774
TRHE SREE Available-for-sale financial assets - 34299 175,687 159,668 913,245 84,099 179,028 1,854,721
EfhEE Other assets 9962 31713 2570 1,012 2,144 - 06514 849,975
1,795,581 6,390,354 1,803,565 3,386,641 7,403517 11,072,397 953,823 32,805,878
8 Liabilities
FIRZE R BIRAMERER 2B Deposits and balances of hanks, central banks and
other financial institutions 605 - - - - - - 605
EPER T8 BEREMER Current, ixed, savings and other deposits of customers 13,117,719 5807416 5182118 4,231,031 47625 - - 28,385,909
BRTRNE Certficates of deposit issued - - - 397915 - - - 397915
EERRAR Trading labiltes - - - - - - 0075 0075
EREBERAARAZHELAZHE  Amount due to immediate holding company
and fellow subsidiaries 842 110 - - - - - 8,552
Hfak Other liabilities 213,130 49,638 2816 209,999 - - - 495,643
13,332,296 5,864,764 5,204,994 4,838,945 47,625 - 107,775 29,396,399
F(aE)/REZE Net iabiityasset gap (1536715) 25500 (3401429) (1452304) 7355892 11072397 846048 3409479
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24 Financial risk management (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk management (continued)
(i) Maturity profile of the assets and liabilities based
on the remaining period at the reporting date to the

R(E) contractual maturity date (continued)
2014
1A 3fEA
bR NEE &L
3fEAR 15R E5ER
Over Over Qver
fEgs 1EAR Tmonth 3 months Tyer  SENE
Repayable Within ~ butwithin -~ butwithin - but within Over i &3
ondemand  Tmonth 3 months 1 year 5 years 5years  Undated Total
-{ Assets
REREHSARE  PRRIR Cash and balances with banks, central banks and
EhoRkiETa other financial institutions 1,037,336 - - - - - 1,037,336
EREHEARE  RRRIR Placements with banks, central banks and other
Efp ez financial insttutions - 478158 521516 809,633 = - 1,809,307
8535 Trade bill 2705 6,293 478 - - - - 13760
EEMnAE Trading assets - - - - - - 148 1478
RFEN Advances to customers 175,268 532,742 679505 2923305 7,138,538 10,469,921 - 1919279
FHEBARADRAZNEARIE  Amounts due from immediate holding company and
fellow subsidiaries 157917 4753592 1,192,208 1,437,859 - - - 8141576
e AR Avallable-for-sale financial assets - 147730 134280 165788 982243 85014 131071 1645526
AipaE Other assets 115395 41818 2217 18933 - 258 810985 1,009,606
2,088,641 5959733 2554468 5355518 8,120,781 10,555,193 953,534 35,587,868
8 Liabilities
FIRZE R BIRAGERER 2B Deposits and balances of hanks, central banks and
other financial institutions 2,246 42,000 - - - - - 44246
ZEAR B8 BEREMER Current, fixed, savings and other deposits of customers 12037210 6,607,230 5252001 6344598 45,090 = - 30,286,129
EEfRER Trading liabiltes = = = = = - 15838 15838
EREBLRADRAZNELDZZE  Amounts due toimmediate holding company and
fellow subsidiaries 920 23,557 1,561,740 - - - 1,586,217
EfpsfE Other liablities 31803 28873 26700 210418 - - 3597
12,352,179 6,701,660 6,840,441 6,555,016 45,090 - 15,841 32,510,227
B(8f)/8EEE Net (liability)/asset gap (10263538)  (741927) (4285973) (1,199.498) 8,075,691 10555193 937,693 3,077,641
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24 Financial risk management (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk management (continued)
(ii) Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

The cash flows payable by the Bank for the non-derivative
financial liabilities including interest payable that will be
settled by remaining contractual maturities at the reporting
date are presented in the following table. The amounts
disclosed are based on the contractual undiscounted cash
flows. Interest payable in respect of term non-derivative
financial liabilities is reported based on contractual interest
payment date.

2015
1faA 38R
WEE NEB  1ENLE
3fEAR 15R  {B5ER
Over Over Over
MEEX  1BAA 1month  3months fyear  SEHE
Repayable ~ Within  butwithin  butwithin  but within Over g

ondemand  1month 3 months 1year Syears  Syears Total
FiTEERER Non-derivative financial liabilities
BARE ST REMARESE  Deposits and balances of banks, central banks and
P2 other financial institutions 605 - = - = - 605
ERER - £ BEREMER Current, fixed, savings and other deposits of customers 13,117,719 5823348 5219503 4277614 47,641 - 28,485,915
BRAENE Certificates of deposit issued - - - 397,915 - - 397,915
ENEBERAARAZNBAR Amounts due to immediate holding company and
pa 4] fellow subsidiaries 842 7710 - - - = 8,552
HirBf Other liabilities 249,007 446 - 190,825 = - 440,278
13,368,173 5,831,504 5219593 4,866,354 47,641 - 29,333,265
KER 7 ETAE Unrecognised loan commitments 1933324 489,312 57,530 385701 442,202 8,461 3,316,530

HRERRECEEEREY

Financial guarantees and other credit related

HAES contingent liabilities 4,908 45,573 42,259 108,869 n5n 2,000 245,186
1,938,232 534,885 99,789 494,570 483,779 10,461 3,561,716
fIETARSTE Derivative cash flows
REEEE 7 ESRTIA Derivative financial instruments settled on a net basis - 31M) (223) (1,112) (4,448) - (6,154)
RBBEE/fEERIE Derivative financial instruments settled on a gross basis
—@iA - total inflow - 1,358,405 2,743,017 2,371,352 111,942 - 6,584,716
— g5 - total outflow - 1,376,069 2,751,463 2,370,939 112,034 - 6,610,505
FURH)/ A Net (outflow)/inflow - (17664)  (3,446) 413 (92) - (25789)
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24 Financial risk management (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk management (continued)
(ii) Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

(%) (continued)
2014
18R 3fEA
LA DEE  1ENE
3fERM 15/ BSER
Over Over QOver
PEEX 1EAR Tmonth 3 months lyear  SEUE
Repayable Within -~ butwithin ~ butwithin ~ but within Over &5
ondemand  Tmonth  3months 1 year 5 years 5 years Total
FTECRER Non-derivative financial liabilities
BORE HRETREMEREE  Deposits and balances of banks, central banks and
253 other financial institutions 2,246 42,000 - - - - 44,246
ZPAR - TF  GEREMHFH Current, fixed, savings and other deposits of customers 12,037,210 6,633527 5297946 6,477,276 45,089 - 30,491,048
EREBERARRAZNEAR Amounts due to immediate holding company and
3B fellow subsidiaries 920 23557 1,572,104 - - - 159,581
HfngE Other labilties 311,803 = - 159877 = - 471680
12,352,179 6,699,084 6,870,050 6,637,153 45,089 - 32,603,555
REA BT AE Unrecognised loan commitments 1,963,678 76,05 964,369 400436 561,303 - 3,965,842
BBERREVEEEREN Financial guarantees and other credit related
HA(EH contingent liabilities 1887 33315 50228 119490 25978 - 230898
1,965,565 109,371 1,014,597 519,926 587,281 - 419,740
TEIERSHE Derivative cash flows
RIBLEETESRIA Derivative financial instruments settled on a net basis - (566) 24 (1762 (6,045) = (8,597)
ReREE iTEERTA Derivative financial instruments settled on a gross basis
-8R\ - total inflow - 214,090 2,090,035 393,286 - - 2,697411
Yol - total outflow - 215727 2,093,204 392,966 - - 2,701,897
B(ii) /A Net (outflow)/inflow - (1830 (3169) 320 = - (4486)
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24 Financial risk management (continued)
(c) Market risk management

Market risk is the risk arising from the movements in market
prices of on- and off-balance sheet positions in interest rates,
foreign exchange rates as well as equity and commodity prices
and the resulting change in the profit or loss or reserve of the
Bank.

The Bank is exposed to market risk on position taken or financial
instrument held or taken such as foreign exchange contracts,
interest rate contracts, fixed income and equity securities and
derivatives instruments.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the policies for the
management of market risks and trading authorities. The Asset
and Liability Management Committee (“ALMCO") has been
delegated the responsibility of controlling and monitoring market
risk including regular review of the risk exposures and the risk
management framework such as the established limits and stop-
losses. The limits are set by ALMCO and reviewed on a periodic
basis with reference to market conditions, with any material
changes requiring a review by the Board of Directors. It is the
Bank’s policy that no limit should be exceeded.

(i) Interest rate risk management

The Bank's interest rate positions arise from treasury and
commercial banking activities. Interest rate risk primarily
results from the timing differences in the repricing of
interest-bearing assets, liabilities and commitments. It also
relates to positions from non-interest bearing liabilities
including shareholders’ funds and current accounts, as well
as from certain fixed rate loans and liabilities. Interest rate
risk is managed by the Financial Management Department
("FMD") within limits approved by the Board. The Bank also
uses interest rate swaps and other derivatives to manage
interest rate risk.

The Bank uses the Price Value of a Basis Point (“PVBP")
measurement quarterly to monitor and limit its interest rate
risk exposure. PVBP is a technique involving the calculation
of the change in present value of a financial instrument or a
portfolio of instruments due to a change of one basis point
in interest rates. It also provides a quick tool to evaluate the
impact on profit and loss due to a basis point movement in
interest rates.
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24 Financial risk management (continued)
(c) Market risk management (continued)

()

Interest rate risk management (continued)

The Bank uses scenario analysis and stress test to assess the
banking book interest rate risk the Bank would face under
adverse circumstances. Scenario analysis and stress test are
also devised to assess the impact on net interest income
arising from the optionality of demand and saving deposits,
the prepayment of mortgage loans and the prepayment of
debt securities with embedded options.

Interest rate sensitivity set out below is for risk management
reported to ALMCO only in simplified scenario, where
demand and saving deposits remain in the level as they
currently are and mortgage loans are serviced until their
original maturity. Actual changes in the Bank’s profit before
tax resulting from the change in interest rates may differ
from the result of the sensitivity analysis. The effect on
interest-bearing financial instruments and interest rate swaps
has been included in this calculation.

2015 2014
EF10EE, Increase in 10 basis points 4,057 3,815
TRE10E2, Decrease in 10 basis points (4,057) (3,815)

BEUEMNERERRIZREESA
& BRERESNERKERE
TEBERMEE - BEENER

BRREEEABERZESEE -

Structural interest rate risk arises primarily from the
deployment of non-interest bearing liabilities, including
shareholders’ funds and current accounts, as well as from
certain fixed rate loans and liabilities. Structural interest rate
risk is monitored by ALMCO.
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24 Financial risk management (continued)
(c) Market risk management (continued)

(i) Interest rate risk management (continued)

The following tables indicate the expected next repricing

date for the assets and liabilities at the reporting date.

2015
3EANL 150
B1FR {B5F K
Over Over %8
3f8AR 3 months 1year SEN E Non-
Within ~ but within  but within Over interest A%
3 months 1 year 5 years 5 years bearing Total

EE Assets
BeRENETRAE hR#M/T  Cashand balances with banks, central banks

REME RsEZR and other financial institutions 512,585 - - - 695,005 1,207,590
EHEMRTRE  hRHFETR  Placements with banks, central banks and

At e RsESE other financial institutions - 239,502 - - - 239,502
EpES Trade bills 9,490 - - - - 9,490
BERBREE Trading assets - - - - 68,281 68,281
REEZ R EMIRE Advances to customers and other accounts 20,673,870 473,694 992,517 99,287 134,638 22,374,006
FHEBRRARRRZNE Amounts due from immediate holding

NGIEE company and fellow subsidiaries 5,944,842 321,734 - - 79,198 6,345,774
HEE SRHEE Available-for-sale financial assets 713,022 159,668 770,303 32,700 179,028 1,854,721
At ERE Others - - - - 706,514 706,514
BEE Total assets 27,853,809 1,194,598 1,762,820 131,987 1,862,664 32,805,878
&f Liabilities
RTAE  RFITREMEE  Deposits and balances of banks, central banks

BE2ER and other financial institutions - - - - 605 605
EPAX - £ #ER Current, fixed, savings and other deposits

L eR of customers 22,243,846 4,241,890 48,011 - 1,852,162 28,385,909
BETRRE Certificates of deposits issued - 397,915 - - - 397,915
BERARAE Trading liabilities - - - - 107,775 107,775
EREBERARRAZNE Amounts due to immediate holding

ARIZFE company and fellow subsidiaries 7,290 - - - 1,262 8,552
A gk Others - - - - 495,643 495,643
B Total liabilities 2251136 4,639,805 48,011 - 2457447 29,396,399
MEGREE B Interest rate sensitivity gap 5,602,673  (3,445,207) 1,714,809 131,987  (594,783) 3,409,479
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24 Financial risk management (continued)
(c) Market risk management (continued)

(i) Interest rate risk management (continued)

2014
3fEALE 180 E
B1ER B5FR
Over Over %8
3EAA 3 months 1 year SENE Non-
Within -~ but within but within Qver interest Sar
3 months 1 year 5 years 5 years bearing Total
43 Assets
BEREHHR{TRE BT Cash and balances with banks, central banks
REME REETE and other financial institutions 482,532 - - - 554,804 1,037,336
EHERRITAE  PREFT Placements with banks, central banks and
REMSBERETE other financial institutions 999,674 809,633 - - - 1,809,307
BH%E Trade bills 13,760 - - - - 13,760
EERREE Trading assets - - - - 11,478 11,478
REERREMEE Advances to customers and other accounts 20,581,349 372,792 860,288 109,919 193,552 22,117,900
EHEBERASRAZNE Amounts due from immediate holding
NGE company and fellow subsidiaries 6,626,100 1,414,395 - - 101,081 8,141,576
AHEHESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 615,317 165,788 700,411 164,010 - 1,645,526
At EE Others - - - - 810,985 810,985
BEE Total assets 29,318,732 2,762,608 1,560,699 273,929 1,671,900 35,587,868
8% Liabilities
RITRE  hRPFIRAMSE  Deposits and balances of banks, central banks
WEZER and other financial institutions 42,000 = = - 2,246 44,246
RPER w8 FER Current, fixed, savings and other deposits
AftEHR of customers 22,053,366 6,344,504 45,455 - 1,642,714 30,286,129
EEARAR Trading liabilities - - - - 15,838 15,838
ENEBRRARRRZNE Amounts due to immediate holding company
ARIZFE and fellow subsidiaries 1,578,154 - - - 8,063 1,586,217
Apafk Others - - - - 577,797 577,797
Baf Total liabilities 23,873,520 6,344,594 45,455 - 2,246,658 32,510,227
FEGBEEE Interest rate sensitivity gap 5445212 (3,581,986) 1,515,244 273,929 (574,758) 3,077,641
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24 B EE 2) 24 Financial risk management (continued)
() MEEREIE(Z) (c) Market risk management (continued)
(i) FZEBEEE) (i) Interest rate risk management (continued)
TRBERKFEE 7 EBRFIR : The following table indicates the effective interest rates for
the year:
2015 2014
EHATFAERITRIZ « P 4R7T  Placement with banks, central banks and
REAM & B E IR other financial institutions 1.66% 2.43%
BHEENEFER Trade bills and advances to customers 3.08% 3.03%
SREE Financial assets 3.01% 2.09%
SRITRIZE ~ RRIBITREM Deposits and balances of banks, central
SREEZTER banks and other financial institutions 2.57% 1.13%
EYSLET N Deposits from customers 1.05% 1.14%
(i) E¥ERERE (ii) Currency risk management
RITHINERR R B INEE B K The Bank’s foreign exchange positions arise from foreign
HIRITET - FTAINEIEF A RER B exchange dealing, commercial banking operations. All
BEBIEKREETS ] THRERE foreign exchange positions are managed by the Treasury
& o Department within limits approved by the Board of Directors.
HRAITATHEERBEL AR The directors do not consider the Bank to have significant
P BENETLEE  ME=1F foreign currency risk as the majority of the Bank's assets and
B ALESETRANT liabilities are denominated in Macau patacas, Hong Kong
GHEEXREERR - L TARRS dollars and United States dollars, which are pegged to each
Hz Rk : other. The exposure at the reporting date was as follows:
2015
B B e Hit =
MOP HKD usD Others Total
BERE Total assets 31.6% 51.8% 10.2% 6.4% 100%
BEE Total liabilities 35.2% 45.6% 8.0% 11.2% 100%
ek} Net position (3.6)% 6.2% 2.2% (4.8)% -
2014
pisles ot ETT EAh a5
MOP HKD usb Others Total
BB E Total assets 28.7% 44.6% 6.3% 20.4% 100%
mafm Total liabilities 31.3% 42.0% 4.2% 22.5% 100%
it Net position (2.6)% 2.6% 2.1% (2.1)% -
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24 Financial risk management (continued)
(d) Operational risk management

(e)

Operational risk is defined as the risk of loss resulting from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or
from external events.

The Bank’s risk management framework is established to control
risks at both corporate and departmental levels. The underlying
management principle is built upon a longstanding culture of high
integrity and risk awareness fostered by senior executives of the Bank.

The framework consists of governing policies with control
measures to ascertain absolute compliance by all operating units.
These measures are directed, controlled and held to account
by operational management committees chaired by senior
executives. Regular reviews are performed by the committees
to ensure proper functioning of internal controls and to identify
improvement opportunities.

Furthermore, independent reviews are conducted by the Bank's
Internal Audit Department to measure the effectiveness of the Bank’s
system of internal controls. This department reports to the Supervisory
Council to ensure the framework is managed with high standards.

Capital management

The Bank’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base to support
the development of the Bank’s business and to meet the statutory
capital adequacy ratio. In addition to meeting the AMCM
requirements and the HKMA requirements on group basis for its
immediate holding company, the Bank’s primary objectives when
managing capital are to safeguard the Bank’s ability to continue
as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk and
by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Bank actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might otherwise be possible with greater gearing
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light
of changes in economic conditions. The amount of minimum
capital requirements held for credit, market and operational risks
is calculated in accordance with the Basel Il requirements under
AMCM and HKMA regulations.

Capital is allocated to the various activities of the Bank depending
on the risk taken by each business division. The Bank is subject
to the capital requirements of the AMCM and the HKMA for
their regulatory supervision purposes. The Bank has complied
with all externally imposed capital requirements throughout the
year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 and are well above the
minimum required ratio set by the AMCM and HKMA.
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

25 Fair values

Financial instruments carried at fair value

Financial instruments measured at fair value on an ongoing basis
include trading assets and liabilities and financial instruments
classified as available-for-sale.

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature, and are
made as of a specific point in time based on the characteristics
of the financial instruments and relevant market information. The
Bank measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy
that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the
measurements:

(i) Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for
an identical instrument.

(i) Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1
that are observable either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly
(i.e., derived from prices). This category includes instruments
valued using: quoted market prices in active markets for similar
instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in
markets that are considered less than active; or other valuation
techniques where all significant inputs are directly or indirectly
observable from market data.

(iii) Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs). This category
includes all instruments where the valuation technique
includes inputs not based on observable market data and the
unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument'’s
valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued
based on quoted prices for similar instruments where significant
unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect
differences between the instruments.
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25 Fair values (continued)

Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

Fair values of financial instruments that are traded in active markets
are based on quoted market prices or dealer price quotations. For all
other financial instruments that are not traded in the active markets,
the Bank determines fair values using valuation techniques. Valuation
techniques include net present value of expected future cash flows
and discounted cash flow models based on “no-arbitrage” principles,
standard option pricing models across the industry for vanilla
derivative products. The objective of valuation techniques is to arrive
at a fair value determination that reflects the price of the financial
instrument at the reporting date that would have been determined by
market participants acting at arm’s length.

The majority of valuation technigques employ only observable market
data. Hence, the reliability of the fair values measurement is high.
However, certain financial instruments are valued on the basis of one
or more significant market inputs that are not observable. The fair
value derived is more judgemental. “Not observable” does not mean
there is absolutely no market data available but there is little or no
current market data available from which to determine the level at
which an arm’s length transaction would likely occur. Examples of
observable inputs include foreign exchange spot and forward rates,
benchmark interest rate curves and volatility surfaces for commonly
traded option products. Examples of unobservable inputs include
volatility surfaces for less commonly traded option products and
correlations between market factors.

Availability of observable market prices and model inputs reduces the
need for management judgement and estimation and also reduces
the valuation uncertainty associated with determination of fair values.
The availability varies depending on the products and markets and is
prone to changes based on specific events and general conditions in
the financial markets.
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25 Fair values (continued)

Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

For more complex instruments, the Bank uses the broker pricing
service, which adopts proprietary valuation models, as inputs to a
fair value measurement. These models usually are developed from
recognised valuation models across the industry with some or all of
the inputs into these models being unobservable in the market.

Fair values are subject to a control framework that aims to ensure
that they are either determined, or validated, by a function
independent of the risk-taker. To this end, ultimate responsibility
for the determination of fair values lies with FMD. FMD establishes
procedures governing valuation, and is responsible for ensuring that
these comply with all relevant accounting standards.

The table below analyses financial instruments measured at fair value
at the reporting date according to the level in the fair value hierarchy
into which they are categorised.

2015
Recurring fair value F15ER H2EH FE3IER a5t
REMEATEETE measurements Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EE Assets
EEAGEE Trading assets
—BEERBITESR — Positive fair values of derivative
TAZERFEER financial instruments held for
trading - 68,281 - 68,281
A ESREE Available-for-sale financial assets
—BHES — Treasury bills - 412,977 - 412,977
— H AR E 5 — Other debt securities 1,011,516 251,200 - 1,262,716
— FTREE — Listed equity securities 35,411 8,904 - 44,315
—JELEmKRE — Unlisted equity securities - = 134,713 134,713
1,046,927 673,081 134,713 1,854,721
8f& Liabilities
BERGAR Trading liabilities
—BEERETESR — Negative fair values of
TAZBAFYERE derivative financial
instruments held for trading - 107,775 - 107,775
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25 Fair values (continued)

BRAFEEIEZ2SRITA(E) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)
2014
Recurring fair value FNER F2EHR E3IFMR aF
KEMDNFEETE measurements Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BE Assets
EERABREE Trading assets
—BERSRITESR — Positive fair values of derivative
TAZIEAFEE financial instruments
held for trading - 11,478 - 11,478
AHEE S MEE Available-for-sale financial assets
— B ES — Treasury bills = 189,927 = 189,927
—HthEBES — Other debt securities 1,166,699 157,829 = 1,324,528
— FHE — Listed equity securities 29,916 7,838 - 37,754
—JEFHRE — Unlisted equity securities - - 93,317 93,317
1,196,615 355,594 93,317 1,645,526
afE Liabilities
EERABREE Trading liabilities
—BEERBITESR — Negative fair values of
TAZBRNFER derivative financial
instruments held for trading - 15,838 — 15,838
(i) F1EFEF2ER[2EHE (i) Transfers between Level 1 and 2

RAFE  eRITAVEEAFEERN
FIEMER2FRFFHERER -
AITZBRBEREHREHLERR
FEESRELER -

During the year, there were no significant transfer of financial
instruments between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy. The Bank’s policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period
in which they occur.

Banco OCBC Weng Hang, S.A. « Annual Report 2015 91



MR RME

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LUBPTET T2 - Batesh) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

25 NEEEE)

BRAVEESEZSRMIE(E)

(i) B3IZH>AFEE
EIZH > NTFEESHE
TRIREAFEBEEIZR Y ATE
B BMNESRRRES T HES -

25 Fair values (continued)
Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)
(ii) Level 3 fair values
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair values
The following table shows a reconciliation from the beginning
balance to the ending balances for fair value measurements in
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

AHHEESHEE - RS
Available for sale
financial assets — equity

2015 2014
BE Assets
1A1B &8 At 1 January 93,317 46,451
R KRR 2 A FEEE Changes in fair value recognised in
the income statement 41,396 46,866
12 31 H &8 At 31 December 134,713 93,317

EIEMZ AT EEERBES

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements:

RERERX ABEZETTHRERE gE
Valuation Significant
techniques unobservable inputs Range
A EIE AR ISR A A TS AT 40%ZE50%
Available-for-sale unlisted Market-comparable Discount for lack of
equity securities approach marketability 40% to 50%

RITATAERSHGRFE - RN E
BFILE  DUEHEABEEGFIAIHES
RIELETMREESFZ AFEEGRRZ
MHRBAEAR) AFEENEESE
BREmERBEARREARBERD - B
201512 A31H  EEMEETER
TR RS - RSN = TS 7 i
M TIN5 % A5 S 1L ISR D RITH IR
EY) b EREEIRI¥6,735,650 °

26 EEEZERATRARBRRIERAT]
R2015F 128318 EERALATHEE
AR RERERA RS B BEFKFIR
TBERAR  —REBBZMELAAA] -
AREBRITER AR — R MNE M
FRALHIA R o BEARIRS T AIEARA
BRI K
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The Bank has estimated the fair value of available-for-sale
unlisted equity securities using the lower of the price/earning
ratios and enterprise value to earning before interest, and taxes
ratio adjusted for lack of marketability discount. The fair value
measurement is negatively correlated to the discount for lack of
marketability. At 31 December 2015, it is estimated that with all
other variables held constant, a decrease/increase in discount of
lack of marketability by 5% would have increased/decreased the
Bank’s investment revaluation reserve by MOP6,735,650.

26 Immediate holding and ultimate controlling party
At 31 December 2015, the directors consider the immediate holding
and ultimate controlling party of the Bank to be OCBC Wing Hang
Bank Limited, which is incorporated in Hong Kong, and Oversea-
Chinese Banking Corporation Limited, which is incorporated in
Singapore respectively. These entities produce financial statements
available for public use.



AEBRZHMETHEE

Unaudited Disclosures of Financial Information

(L BRFTEF L5 Batksh) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise indicated)

A RREREZ 2 HEERETE  RAKFAEM®AE  The following unaudited disclosures of financial information are prepared
RMEREREY 2 EEREEES MER - to comply with the Guideline on the Disclosure of Financial Information
issued by the Monetary Authority of Macao.

QEESHREEB2EXRZTEL= (a)Capital adequacy ratio of top consolidated

group
£
Group

2015 2014
M12A31 8 2 EARF B L Capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 16.8% 15.9%
G AEEEBENE TR RE637 The calculation of the regulatory capital and capital charges of the top
SR (B AT R REKRER) BB & B consolidated group are in accordance with the Monetary Authority
EERGERES o of Singapore Notice to Banks No. 637 (Notice on Risk Based Capital

Adequacy Requirement) for Banks incorporated in Singapore.
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(b) EAEL 748 BR R 12 (b)Components of own funds
2015 2014
EXHEEE: Core capital:
BHE K Paid-up share capital 120,000 120,000
EEEES RAERBEEZ Legal, statutory and other reserves created
e REMARD A by appropriation of retained profits
P < fE& 304,200 304,200
BBRRTT Profits brought forward 1,865,131 1,521,073
RNEZERBER Current year eligible net profits 188,488 180,134
EXgREwE®E Total core capital 2,477,819 2,125,407
HrEEES: Supplementary capital:
HIESEH2FHES Reserves on revaluation of own premises 51,610 51,610
—REHRS General provision 225,295 221,740
mrEREwEE 000 Total supplementary capital 276,905 273,350
nwwme: _ Deductionn = . .
SHRIERE 2B EES B Total own funds after deduction 2,754,724 2,398,757
HBBEERZAEEES B NIEKI D 2% The calculation on the components and total amount of own funds
RBRPIS R EIE D5 012/9358 @& 38 B &5 after deduction is in accordance with Notice No. 012/93-AMCM.
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() ERZ R MERE
() EAEZNEAEDLE

(c) Capital adequacy and solvency
(i) Capital adequacy and solvency ratio

2015 2014
W12 A31 BEEE N =X Solvency ratio as at 31 December - 11.8%
W12 A31 B & ART L & Capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 13.71% =
AR1THR2015F 12 A31HHE AT B L The capital adequacy ratio as of 31 December 2015 is compiled in

EHER

20159 A10B £ 2B &

accordance with Notice No. 011/2015-AMCM effective from 10

BMEIERE011/201555 8% - MATT
R2014F 12 A31BENE DR
AR2015F9H 108 Al Exﬁzz FiEmt

September 2015, whereas the solvency ratio as of 31 December
2014 was compiled in accordance with Notice No. 002/2011-
AMCM as in force before 10 September 2015.

BB REE002/20115%8

(i) WHEREBZERER

(ii) Market risk capital requirement

2015 2014

MmEERER 2 EXK : The market risk capital requirements for
— A= B — Interest rate risk - -
— &R b — Equity position risk = -
— HNPE & f2 — Foreign exchange risk 2,376 2,603
— — Commodity risk - _
INHET 5 AR 425 Weighted market risk exposures 2,376 2,603

(d)EE =B (d)Credit risk
() RESBEz2EFERDN (i) Geographical analysis of loans and advances to customers
2015

2R

EFEX
(ZEAKL) HEER 18 BIRE BRRE
BEFEX Overdue  (fEBIZEF) R3] £
k] loans and Impaired Individually  Collectively
Gross advances loans assessed assessed
loans and (over 3 (individually impairment impairment
advances months) determined) allowances allowances
SRPY Macau 20,797,509 27,752 25,821 23,436 10,470
BB Hong Kong 839,301 - - - 422
A China 609,805 - - - 307
HA Other 18,574 - - - 10
22,265,189 27,752 25,821 23,436 11,209

Banco OCBC Weng Hang, S.A. « Annual Report 2015 95



AEBRZHMETHEE

Unaudited Disclosures of Financial Information

(L BFTEF L5 Batsh) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise indicated)
(d)EERE =) (d)Credit risk (continued)

() RERSBZEFERDIN(E)

(i) Geographical analysis of loans and advances to customers

(continued)
2014

2B

BEFER
(Z@EARL) DERIEN=EN ERIRE BESRE
BEFEEXR Overdue (fARIZE) e g e f
1B loans and Impaired  Individually  Collectively
Gross advances loans assessed assessed
loans and (over  (individually  impairment impairment

advances 3 months)  determined) allowances allowances

B Macau 19,999,449 34,045 26,193 23,421 7,143
BB Hong Kong 1,441,289 = - _ 515
RE A China 485,880 - - - 174
Hity Other 23,923 - - - 9

21,950,541 34,045 26,193 23,421 7,841

WA bR 2Rz 2T TH IR B R A 2 P
WY EEMEBRBRE - —KRNE -
EEMER 2 ERERILIFERAME
2 = EFREFEBER

(i) ZEHSBZ2EHREZDF

The above geographical analysis is classified by the location of
the borrowers after taking into account the transfer of risk. In
general, risk transfer applies when a loan is guaranteed by a party
situated in an area different from the counterparty.

(ii) Geographical analysis of debt securities

2015 2014
& BR B2 18 Bl R (B 2E
Individually Individually
IR EE assessed IR E assessed
Carrying impairment Carrying impairment
amount allowances amount allowances
B Hong Kong 703,694 = 548,005 =
Hifhgs A& Rest of Asia-Pacific 771,166 - 739,045 -
E Americas 76,170 - 86,151 =
HAtd Other 124,663 - 141,254 =
1,675,693 - 1,514,455 -
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(i) RBHE A TS QA > B4
SRS > EREE RS EERNHR

(d)CfEdit risk (continued)

(iii) Maturity analysis on certain assets and liabilities based on
the residual contractual maturity at the reporting date

DR
2015
18R 38R
HEE MEE  1ENRE
AR 158 B3%FR
Over Over Over
MEBZ  1EAA  1month 3 months fyear  3FENE 8
Repayable Within  but within  but within  but within Over  Indefinite ag
ondemand  1month 3 months 1 year 3 years 3 years period Total
EE Assets
ZHZRREFPET  Trade bills, loans and advances
to customers 411,295 958,056 730,175 2,664,083 3,815,438 13,660,988 - 22,240,035
BERERRTRERE Cash and balances with and
loans and advances to banks 1,207,590 - - - - - - 1,207,590
BEFHTR/HEF  Securities issued by Macao SAR
SREERELZES  Government and/or AMCM - 302,99 69,983 - - - - M
BELGRE Certificates of deposit held - - 29,118 159,668 48,765 - - 231,551
EthiE% Other securities - - 76,586 - 685,065 263,514 179,028 1,204,193
af Liabilities
RIOAER Deposits and balances of banks
A RBERN and financial institutions 605 - - = = S = 605
NERERR Deposits from public sector
entities 1,720 - 712,377 199,755 - - - 913,852
PREABAAZE  Deposits from holding and
associated companies 842 7.110 - - - - - 8,552
BETFRE Certificates of deposit issued - - - 397,915 - - - 397915
ERTRAEZEER Deposits from non-bank
customers 13,115,999  5807,416 4,469,741 4,031,276 47,604 21 - 27,472,057
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(d)EER M2 (d)Credit risk (continued)

(i) RERESAZSANEEHA L 2 B e (iii) Maturity analysis on certain assets and liabilities based
HREDZENEEREEEB NWHR on the residual contractual maturity at the reporting date
PWER(E) (continued)

2014

1EA 3fEA
LR BEE  1FRE
3EAR 1€/ (B3R

QOver Over QOver
BEEx (AR 1month 3 months Tyear  3FHLE g
Repayable Within -~ but within ~ but within ~ but within Over  Indefinite pak
on demand Tmonth 3 months 1 year 3 years 3 years period Total
EE Assets
ZHEBEREFEST Trade bills, loans and advances
to customers 177,993 539,036 684,247 2,923,305 4,325,848 13,282,610 - 21,933,039
BERGHSETRESE Cash and balances with and
loans and advances to banks 1,037,336 - - - - - - 1,037,336
BEFRFR,/SEF  Securities issued by Macao SAR
LREEREEZES  Government and/or AMCM - 69,999 69,986 49,942 - = S 189,927
RELFTE Certificates of deposit held = - = - 32,736 55,033 = 87,769
HfEs Other securities - 71131 64,204 115846 590427 389,061 131,071 1,367,830
8 Liabilities
FIRER Deposits and balances of banks
HEeRlETT and financial institutions 2,246 42,000 - - - - - 44,246
NERERN Deposits from public sector
entities 692 - 188,225 1,254,424 - - - 1,443341
PEREEBATZE  Deposits from holding and
associated companies 920 23557 1,561,740 - - - - 1,586,217
ERTREEFERER Deposits from non-bank
customers 12,036,518 6,607,230 5,063,776 5,090,174 44,898 192 - 28,842,788
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(e) FMEE /2L Bex (e) Foreign exchange risk
2015
AR# HihE#
B PR K B#  Chinese E7T Other 43
MOP HK$ Renminbi US$ currencies Total
FREBEEE Total net long positions 748 - - 61,035 2,368 64,151
SRR AR AR Total net short positions - 61,898 1,666 - 587 64,151
2014
AR K Hih B
SR P Pk Chinese I Other A&T
MOP HK$  Renminbi US$ currencies Total
FREBEEE Total net long positions 290,936 = 729 15,348 1,860 308,873
R AR AR RS Total net short positions - 308,520 - = 353 308,873
2015
AR%
B Chinese E3 ax
HK$ Renminbi us$ Total
BEEE Spot assets 17,013,668 1,086,361 3,358,315 21,458,344
BEEE Spot liabilities 14,951,429 2,659,101 2,625,706 20,236,236
REIE A Forward purchases 239,566 2,625,685 2,383,239 5,248,490
RHIEH Forward sales 2,363,703 1,054,611 3,054,813 6,473,127
MR R Net option positions = - - _
£,/ (%) F%  Net long/(short) positions (61,898) (1,666) 61,035 (2,529)
2014
AREE
B Chinese ES &t
HK$ Renminbi us$ Total
REEE Spot assets 15,867,098 6,158,686 2,240,047 24,265,831
REAE Spot liabilities 14,942,530 6,907,629 1,503,629 23,353,788
EHEA Forward purchases 174,492 1,182,089 638,247 1,994,828
REE Forward sales 1,407,580 432,417 1,359,317 3,199,314
HER B FE Net option positions - - - _
£, (58)#%%  Net long/(short) positions (308,520) 729 15,348 (292,443)
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AEBRZHMETHEE

Unaudited Disclosures of Financial Information

(L BFTEF L5 Batsh) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise indicated)
(f) REBVE £ R M (f) Liquidity risk
2015 2014
FRAYHRKIRE &% Average minimum weekly cash in hand 657,176 669,324
FRAFHE S &S Average weekly cash in hand 901,738 923,642
FAEHEEREBEE Average month-end specified liquid assets 10,422,549 9,480,973
2015 2014
% %
FRAEHHEREEENR Average month-end ratio of specified liquid
EABELE assets to total basic liabilities 34.8 33.0
— (@A RBESLLE Average one-month liquidity ratio 45.5 43.0
=@AFEReERLE Average three-months liquidity ratio 38.2 38.8
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(g)EEEER(BBERMEMER
R E 2 ZEEEMK )
BEABRA-Z—HF+=-HA=1+—H

(g)Balance sheet (in accordance with standard
format established by the AMCM)
BALANGO ANUAL EM 31 DE DEZEMBRO DE 2015

P
MOP
BHS
WENRE
PROVISOES,
EEME AMORTIZACOES E BEZHE
EE ACTIVO ACTIVO BRUTO MENOS - VALIAS ACTIVO LIQUIDO
Re CAIXA 431,904,638 431,904,638
AMCM7TE % DEPOSITOS NA AMCM 503,473,459 503,473,459
FE BRI VALORES A COBRAR 416,727,196 416,727,196
TR 2 FA A5 At DEPOSITOS A ORDEM NOUTRAS INSTITUICOES DE
G EE CREDITO NO TERRITORIO 19,203,833 19,203,833
TEONE 2 BAl A5 P DEPOSITOS A ORDEM NO EXTERIOR
EEES 88,259,041 88,259,041
T iR OURO E PRATA
HitnehEE OUTROS VALORES
HGR CREDITO CONCEDIDO 22,146,979,328 2,895,500  22,144,083,828
TEASR{E BB APLICACOES EM INSTITUICOES DE CREDITO NO
TERRITORIO 703,900,067 703,900,067
TESME FAEE 2 B R DEPOSITOS COM PRE-AVISO E A PRAZO NO
EEER EXTERIOR 6,252,163,428 6,252,163,428
RE -« F5 M ACCOES, OBRIGACOES E QUOTAS 1,099,777,333 1,099,777,333
RIEEERE APLICACOES DE RECURSOS CONSIGNADOS
BEEA DEVEDORES 2,653,021 2,653,021
Hig & OUTRAS APLICACOES 237,550,991 237,550,991
EIRE PARTICIPACOES FINANCEIRAS 53,275,057 53,275,057
TEYE IMOVEIS 692,599,428 35,927,838 656,671,590
B EQUIPAMENTO 184,291,178 134,448,695 49,842,483
EXEER CUSTOS PLURIENAIS
R e A DESPESAS DE INSTALACAO
R B E IMOBILIZACOES EM CURSO
HinEEEE OUTROS VALORES IMOBILIZADOS
AR EEESE CONTAS INTERNAS E DE REGULARIZACAO 136,437,139 136,437,139
ot TOTAIS 32,969,195,137 173,272,033 32,795,923,104
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AEBRZHMETHEE

Unaudited Disclosures of Financial Information
(LBPTET Tz B » Bathrsh)

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise indicated)

()EEEBR(BERMEMER
BB EZEERER) 2
BEEEBRR=-Z—HFE+=A=+—8

(g)Balance sheet (in accordance with standard
format established by the AMCM) (continued)
BALANGO ANUAL EM 31 DE DEZEMBRO DE 2015 (continued)

(%)
B M
MOP
NN wmE
=L PASSIVO SUB-TOTAIS TOTAIS
EEGER N DEPOSITOS A ORDEM 13,107,510,615
BANTFR DEPOSITOS C/PRE-AVISO
TEHATF K DEPOSITOS A PRAZO 14,353,799,942
NHBETR DEPOSITOS DE SECTOR PUBLICO 913,852,017 28,375,162,574
AHERKEE S RECURSOS DE INSTITUICOES DE CREDITO NO
TERRITORIO 342,634
Hb N EE S RECURSOS DE OUTRAS ENTIDADES LOCAIS
INEEFE R EMPRESTIMOS EM MOEDAS EXTERNAS 407,345,693
BEHER EMPRESTIMOS POR OBRIGACOES
EEESEEA CREDORES POR RECURSOS CONSIGNADOS
ERNZERRE CHEQUES E ORDENS A PAGAR 61,641,806
fEEA CREDORES 43,852,560
FIEARE EXIGIBILIDADES DIVERSAS 83,440,603 596,623,296
A BB & 78 2 AR CONTAS INTERNAS E DE REGULARIZACAO 382,909,331
FERRER® PROVISOES PARA RISCOS DIVERSOS 11,208,881
[N CAPITAL 120,000,000
EEREE RESERVA LEGAL 120,000,000
Eha1 RESERVA ESTATUTARIA 184,200,000
BHhHE RESERVA DE REAVALIACAO 572,745,645
H b & *OUTRAS RESERVAS 190,860,863 1,187,806,508
BE &S RESULTADOS TRANSITADOS DE EXERCICIOS
ANTERIORES 1,865,130,951
RELFER RESULTADO DO EXERCICIO 377,081,563  2,242,212,514
k] TOTAIS 32,795,923,104
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()EEEBR(BERMEMER
BB EZEERER) 2
BEEEBRR=-Z—HFE+=A=1+—8

(&)

B e E i 7 R &R PI % 190,860,863 T MY
—MERERS o BITHACRMMEHRE%E
A& HFEMBRERAMTIRETORE L -
BRREEE A REERIZ(EE18/93 - AMCMSR
BE)RENSKEKTEH—REABRERS -
BITERL —SHERZEEKEHERASSR
BEEEEZENSB(EERETHRBRMAK
23,225,562 EREE R - ZILBRERSER
BREANEBRAERIITA [ RIESRERE
ErEEENERe | WEERETFENH
HERAMWEE RSB - A [BRBEREF | ERES
RMEBREZHETEN [FEXE I ZHNAE
HE SR °

(g)Balance sheet (in accordance with standard
format established by the AMCM) (continued)

BALANCO ANUAL EM 31 DE DEZEMBRO DE 2015 (continued)

As Outras Reservas incluem uma reserva obrigatéria no montante de
190,860,863 Patacas. Porque o Banco adopta as Normas de Relato Financeiro
de Macau na preparacao das suas demonstracoes financeiras anuais, as perdas
de imparidade com base nas NRFM podem ser inferiores ao nivel minimo de
provisdes genéricas calculadas de acordo com o Aviso 18/93 da AMCM (o
nivel minimo). A referida reserva obrigatéria representa, pois, a diferenca entre
o nivel minimo e as perdas de imparidade nos termos das NRFM (antes dos
impostos diferidos de 23,225,562 Patacas). Este mesmo montante, inscrito na
linha {Dotacoes adicionais para provisées conforme RJSF) da Conta de Lucros
e Perdas das contas resumidas, esta reconciliado entre o € Lucro depois de
impostos)e os{Resultados do ano)de acordo com as regras da RISF na Conta
de exploracdo das demonstracoes financeiras auditadas anuais.

BPIHE
MoP
T

BER

RERER
(€ 2

HIER

REE RIERT K
(VRN

AR ESR
REREFER
HESA
HEEH

HitEERR

CONTAS EXTRAPATRIMONIAIS

VALORES RECEBIDOS EM DEPOSITO
VALORES RECEBIDOS PARA COBRANCA
VALORES RECEBIDOS EM CAUCAO
GARANTIAS E AVALES PRESTADOS
CREDITOS ABERTOS
ACEITES EM CIRCULACAO
VALORES DADOS EM CAUCAOQ
COMPRAS A PRAZO
VENDAS A PRAZO
OUTRAS CONTAS EXTRAPATRIMONIAIS

MONTANTE

7,031,874,704
26,588,579
39,761,983,102
175,569,356
69,617,062
48,056,980

6,584,716,714
6,609,354,267
1,480,416,814
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AEBRZHMETHEE

Unaudited Disclosures of Financial Information
(LBPTET Tz B » Bathrsh)

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise indicated)

(hEEXR(RERMESMEER A

(h)Profit and loss account (in accordance with

HREZEEKR) standard format established by the AMCM)
CE-AERELREE DEMONSTRACAO DE RESULTADOS DO EXERCICIO DE 2015
EXRE CONTA DE EXPLORACAO
P
MOP
X o]
&R Débito MONTANTE &% Crébito MONTANTE
BEEBKA CUSTOS DE OPERACOES 326,271,829 &EEKWE PROVEITOS DE 882,003,330
PASSIVAS OPERACOES ACTIVAS
AEEH CUSTOS COM PESSOAL RITARIS W= PROVEITOS DE SERVICOS 125,486,087
BANCARIOS
BER REMUNERACOES DOS 100,000 EABRTT PROVEITOS DE OUTRAS 57,491,754
EReRfd ORGAOS DE GESTAO ¥ OPERACOES
E FISCALIZACAO BANCARIAS
BEMYZ REMUNERACOES DE 131,295,598 &5 KA RENDIMENTOS DE 40,493,446
EMPREGADOS B W TITULOS DE CREDITO
E DE PARTICIPACOES
FINANCEIRAS
Bl =k ENCARGOS SOCIAIS 47,940,960 EH{hR1TUa= OUTROS PROVEITOS 34,554,644
BANCARIOS
HEMAEEA OUTROS CUSTOS 1,307,460 JEIEEHEULEE  PROVEITOS INORGANICOS 493
COM O PESSOAL
F=F{EH 2B FORNECIMENTOS DE 8,331,924
TERCEIROS
FE=FIRM 7 475 SERVICOS DE TERCEIROS 44,211,165
HMR1TEA OUTROS CUSTOS 104,013,936
BANCARIOS
HIE IMPOSTOS 942,130
JEIEHEMEM  CUSTOS INORGANICOS 1,070,716
ERRK DOTACOES PARA 34,652,841
AMORTIZACOES
BRE 2 BR DOTACOES PARA 361,042
PROVISOES
Ve LUCRO DA EXPLORACAO 439,530,153
1A %E TOTAIS 1,140,029,754 #&%E TOTAIS 1,140,029,754
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(hWEZR(BBREMEREER
BREZEBERKRN) 2

(h)Profit and loss account (in accordance with
standard format established by the AMCM)

(continued)

BRETER DEMONSTRACAO DE RESULTADOS DO EXERCICIO DE 2015
BRI
MOP
&8 -
&R Débito MONTANTE E7 Crébito MONTANTE
BEBL PREJUIZO DE &R LUCRO DE EXPLORACAQ 439,530,153
EXPLORACAO
BE2EX PERDAS RELATIVAS 4,187,922 [FEZHH LUCROS RELATIVOS 361,043
A EXERCICIOS A EXERCICIOS
ANTERIORES ANTERIORES
FERIE R PERDAS EXCEPCIONAIS R F LUCROS EXCEPCIONAIS
EENHEZ DOTACOES PARA 55,599,633 {#HRAEZFEA PROVISOES UTILIZADAS 4,187,922
TRIER K IMPOSTOS SOBRE
LUCROS DO EXERCICIO
RIECRHER DOTACOES ADICIONAIS 7,210,000
VAR E G PARA PROVISOES
MEAE CONFORME RISF
EHEAER(RBH)  RESULTADO DO 377,081,563
EXERCICIO (SE
POSITIVO)
1A %E TOTAIS 444,079,118 #2758 TOTAIS 444,079,118
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AEBRZHMETHEE

Unaudited Disclosures of Financial Information

%S EEHE &
—®2-HE%+=-A=+-AH

Inventario De Participacoes Financeiras

EM 31 DE DEZEMBRO DE 2015

FREBRE =t IREEE Baott
Tipo/Sector de actividade Nome Valor do balanco Valor percentual
P W
MOP
BREZE BRI —AEBEIE 548
Accbes/Quotas por sector de
actividade
RIT - R REMITHE B =R ER AR 41,025,073 12.00%
Bancos, seguros e outros servicos ~ Companhia de Seguros Luen Fung
Hang, S.A.R.L.
e = ASRRIRODARAR 10,119,254 10.50%
Companhia de Seguros Luen Fung
Hang-Vida, S.A.
&t TOTAIS 51,144,327

RIBPEFSRBFEENES L TREZAS
Quadro a publicar ao dbrigo do artigo 75°. do R.J.S.F.
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Bl R LR

IFRS Comparisons

AT ZEETIBERRBEBRPFRITRES
25/20055% 1T BUE AR B A8 A0 2 CR P9 B 765 &5 48
AINVREL - CRPIM SRS 2R REEFA L
HEBR ST EREEE AN  WITBUAREM B
A R BB B 75 3R 5 2E BN Y 4B RK © ZARTT N8 AL
iR — D 1R BRC B PR B 75 R 25 2 Bl )R A8 | A%
HISHRE - ERRAENRCRPIMISIRE ARk
CEIR B a5 21 ) ¥ AR 1722015612 A31H
IEHRFBRAREEER LW EEAEE -

The Bank’s statutory financial statements were prepared in accordance
with Macau Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRS"”) as set out
in Administrative Regulation no. 25/2005 of the Macau Special
Administrative Region. MFRS were constituted by the direct adoption of
certain International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) effective at
the time of enactment of the Administrative Regulation. The Bank also
prepares a separate set of audited financial statements in accordance
with IFRS. The directors consider that there is no significant difference
between the adopting of MFRS or IFRS on the Bank’s financial position and
operating results for the year ended 31 December 2015.
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List of Branches

BT
HRED T
AHH DT
HBDIT
ROBSIT
BlofT
Bt SHEDT
WEDT
TR D AT
HORDT
EREEDT

RFEDIT

KEFREHD 1T

B 24155
RIFEIEA3ND
== S 855
EFNEZBI19-2158

B8 HK3295C-F

B3 K 5 B 2R B 333855
=S E295AM T

WEE N\EEEIER 1955
B 75-795%
FOEAREEES28650H T
REKXGEKERBE2EAL

BMAKE¥309-3155%

= EIEE S A DR
AT R N H7356-36657 E3
FEeXE
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Head Office

Ho Lan Un Branch
Hong Kai Si Branch
San Kiu Branch

Hak Sa Van Branch
Toi San Branch

Kou Tei Vu Kai Branch
lao Hon Branch

Ho Pin San Kai Branch
San Hau On Branch
StarWorld Hotel

Branch

Fai Chi Kei Branch

Flower City Branch

241 Avenida de Almeida Ribeiro

3D Avenida do Conselheiro Ferreira de Almeida
85 Avenida Horta e Costa

19-21 Estrada de Adolfo Loureiro

32C-F Estrada de Marginal do Hipodromo

338 Avenida de A.T. Barbosa

29A Rua Pedro Coutinho R/C

195 Rua Oito do Bairro lao Hon

75-79 Rua Almirante Sergio

286 Alameda Dr. Carlos D'Assumpcao R/C
Shop A, Level 2 of StarWorld Hotel, Avenida de
Amizade

Avenida do Conselheiro Borja Nos. 309-315,
Mayfair Garden Bloco 5D R/C

356-366, Rua de Evora, Edif. Lei Fung, Taipa
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Registered Office : 241 Avenida de Almeida Ribeiro, Macau
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